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Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc. Council 2011 

 

Office Bearers and Management Council for 2011 were as follows: 

 

President  Anthony Bell 

Secretary Douglas Eggins 

Treasurer  Quentin Olde 

Elected Members          Chris Barron 
 Jon Collins (resigned 1.3.11) 

 Denis Cleary (appointed 6.6.11) 

 Michael Jorgensen  
 Simon Poidevin 

 Warwick Waugh 

Life Members Representative Peter Court 

Club Coach        Craig Morrison  

Honorary Lawyer               Michael Barko 

Patron                                        Jeffery Sayle 

Lady President                           Sarah Whiteside 

 

Attendance at Management Meetings 

Since the election on 28 February 2011, the Council has met ten times up to 5 December 2011.  
Attendance to that date are: -  

 

Anthony Bell 9 

Douglas Eggins 10 

Quentin Olde 6 

Chris Barron 6 

Denis Cleary 2 

Michael Jorgensen 2 

Simon Poidevin 10 

Warwick Waugh 10 

Craig Morrison 9 

Peter Court 7 

Michael Barko 2 

Jeffrey Sayle 9 

Sarah Whiteside nil 

Tony Lewis 10 
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Other Officials 2011 

General Manager                     Tony Lewis 

Club Captain                             Anthony Savovski / Tom Weber 

Players Representative             Tim Maxwell 

Club Trainer                                Andrew James 

Honorary Timekeeper               Richard Brincat 

Honorary Statistician               Doug Alexander 

Honorary Historian and 
Archivist  Bob Outterside 

Honorary Ball Boy Captain       Lisa  Ellis 

Ball Boys                                  Michael Antoniades, Paddy Cocks, Joel Ellis, Will Jackson, 
  Luc Johnson, Chris Roach, Nathan Williamson and Kyle Wilson 

Medical Officer                       Dr Joe Casamento 

Auditor                                    Ken Wright 
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President’s Report 

The Club’s management submits for your consideration and adoption the 2011 Annual Report 
including financial statements, covering the Club’s activities in 2011. 

On behalf of the Club’s Committee, the Randwick Rugby Council, I am pleased to furnish my 
President’s Report for the season. 

The Committee has worked hard to represent the Club and its members.  There is no doubt that 
we are in a building phase in a competition that presents many obstacles and challenges for the 
club rugby environment. I am pleased to report that the Committee, coaches and management 
have met these challenges with vigor and determination. 

I am proud that the Club made the Semi-Finals in all Grades. Further to this foundations were 
laid to protect the Club’s future in terms of fundraising and future planning while we also 
achieved solid results in terms of attracting and recruiting new talent to take Randwick into the 
future. 

To Craig Morrison and his coaching staff I extend our gratitude for their dedication to the players 
and their development.  We demonstrated, particularly at the back end of the season, that the 
Club can play with great spirit the type of Rugby for which Randwick has become famous all 
around the world. 

I would also like to thank Tony Lewis for the creative energy he brings to his many tasks as 
General Manager. Our gratitude goes also to all the managers, volunteers and supporters 
without whom the presentation of our games simply would not meet the high standards expected 
from a first division club.  

So on to season 2012 and the excitement of our season launch. We have made some innovative 
changes to our Football department to take our Club into the next phase of Australian 
Rugby.  New coaching structures, new methods of recruitment and the reintroduction of some of 
the Randwick greats will see Randwick seriously contest the Club Championships and the Grade 
Premierships. 

Later in this Annual Report you will read about our Colts and Juniors of 2011 and come to 
appreciate the clear and unequivocal message of well-founded optimism that emerges from both 
camps. With additional help and encouragement from Senior Club players and officials, the 
vision of these younger members and their coaches and managers may become a reality. The 
attendance of Seniors at the matches and training sessions of Colts and Juniors never goes 
unnoticed. I ask that you give them your support. 
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Moreover, it is pivotal to the future success of our Club that each each player and representative 
is given every possible assistance in improving their game. At Randwick this does not merely 
mean learning the skills of rugby, but rather coming to a clearer understanding of that unique 
brand of the game known as Randwick Rugby. 
 

To success in 2012! 
 
Warm regards, 
Anthony Bell 
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2011 Randwick Rugby Season 

On 21 July 2011 the Club conducted its second Randwick Rugby Hall of Fame lunch at the Hilton 
Hotel, with over 600 attendees. The Randwick players inducted into the Randwick Rugby Hall of 
Fame were: 
 

Bob Dwyer 

Eddie Jones 

Phil Kearns 

John Maxwell 

Wally Meagher 

Bob Outterside 

Keith Windon 

 
These inductees now join the original Randwick Rugby Hall of Fame Inductees: 
 

JE Brass 

AJ Buchan 

DI Campese 

KW Catchpole 

MG Ella 

RL Fairfax 

PG Johnson 

EJA McKenzie 

AR Morton 

SP Poidevin 

JL Sayle 

Sir NM Shehadie 

RN Thornett 

CH Towers 

WW Waugh 

CJ Windon 
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Representative Scene 

Randwick continued its outstanding contribution to the Wallabies, Super 15, Provincial Teams, 
Australian Sevens Teams and other representative teams. 

We congratulate these players on their achievements in 2011. 

Wallabies 

Kurtley Beale, Mark Chisholm, Rocky Elsom, Sekope Kepu, Matt Giteau, Drew Mitchell 

Waratahs 

Kurtley Beale, Sekope Kepu, Drew Mitchell, Ben Mowen, Atieli Pakalani 

Brumbies 

Mark Chisholm, Rocky Elsom, Stephen Hoiles, Christian Lealiifano, Patrick Phibbs, 

Josh Valentine 

Melbourne Rebels 

Adam Freier 

Western Force 

Cruz Ah-Nau, Phoenix Battye,  
Gene Fairbanks 

Australian Sevens 

Shaun Foley, Henry Vanderglas 

Australian Barbarians 

Tom Connor, Liam Walker  

Australian U19 Academy  

Tom Connor 

Australian Services Rugby Union 

DJ Cahill (Coach), Mark (Jock) Giacheri (Forwards Coach), Gavin Whiteside (Assistant Coach) 

Jason Harrington (C), Ben Jones (VC), Ricky Dumigan, Tony Luxford, Sean Richardson, 
Daniel Robertson 

Defence World XV 

Tony Luxford, Sean Richardson, Jason Harrington (R) 

Awards for Representative Players 

Kurtley Beale – John Eales Medal 
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Milestones in 2011 

The following players achieved milestones in the number of games played for the Club: 

Patrick Mekuri   100 Grade games 

Andrew Wing Kee   100 Grade games 

Tim Wright   100 Grade games 

Daniel Spencer   150 Grade games 

Antonio Halangahu   200 Grade games 

Iosua Leasusu   200 Grade games  

Darren O'Shea   200 Grade games 

Tim Maxwell   250 Grade games 

Best and Fairest Awards 

First Grade  Tim McGann 

Second Grade  Jack Tovey 

Third Grade  Chris Barron 

Fourth Grade  Tom Jenkins 

Fifth Grade  Michael Kaissis 

Colts First Grade  Will Munro 

Colts Second Grade  Tim Murray 

Colts Third Grade  Epa Iosefa and Stuart McKenzie 
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Randwick Rugby Trophy for Best and Fairest Player in the Club 
Tim McGann 
 
Ron Don Memorial Trophy for Most Improved Player in the Club 
Maraki Toa 
 
Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy for Best Club Man in Fourth Grade 
Todd Martin 

 
Best Clubman of the Year 

Tim Maxwell 

 

Rookie of the year 
Ethan Ford 
 
Aiden Wilson Memorial Colts Clubman of the Year 
John Weatherall 
 
Colts Player of the Year  

Tom Connor 

 

Laurie Augue Memorial Trophy for the Grade team that scores the most number of  

tries in a Season:    

Third Grade—129 tries 

 

The WT (Bill) Outterside Memorial Trophy 

The Recipient shall be a player acknowledged by his team-mates for his commitment to fitness, 

willingness to learn, loyalty to his fellows and to his Club and dedication to mastering the 

fundamentals of the Randwick Brand of Rugby - 2011 Recipient:  Shaun Foley 

 

Windon Trophy for best back rower in the Club   

Henry Vanderglas 

 

CH Towers Trophy for season's leading try scorer 

Michael Gibson  

 

Club’s most valuable player 

Josh Valentine 

 

Best new player in the Club       

Luke Parsons 

 

Coach's best all-rounder on and off the Field  

Chris Barron 
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Sponsors 

Without the generosity and support of our Club sponsors we would struggle to survive from year 
to year; our sincere appreciation and gratitude to all of our Club sponsors below. 
 
Peters of Kensington Peter Satouris 
Sykes Jon Collins 
Allight Sykes                                       Stephen Donnelly 
Randwick Motor Group Florence and Robert Bonanno 
N.G. Farah Glenn Farah, Jason Black and Ken Smith 
Randwick Rugby Foundation Peter Sweeney 
Australian Temporary Fencing Todd Johnston 
Beirsdorf Lyndal Bloom 
Body Science                                     Nathan Picklum 
Cartwright insurance Geoff Cartwright 
Computer Associates Damien Maree 
Coogee Café Con Zarocostas 
Crowne Plaza Coogee Natalie Pearson 
Divcall NSW Allen Stutchbury 
Eastside Physiotherapy Diane Long 
Girvan Waugh                                     Warwick Waugh and Michael Girvan 
Grinners Catering Steve Kelly 
MLC Advice Randwick                        Cameron McCausland 
Pattons Tom Gastin / Daniel Halse 
Royal Randwick Fruit Market              Claudio Guerrera 
Salmat                                                 Nathan Symes 
Taylor Woodings Quentin Olde 
Vachie Team Wear                             Trent Landon 
Walshs Pharmacy                               Richard and Phillip Walsh 
Wireless 2 Way Bob Wilson 

The Randwick Rugby Club is 
proud to be associated with all 
sponsors and appreciates 
them being part of the  
Randwick family. The Club 
looks forward to seeing all 
sponsors return in 2012. 
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The Club also expresses its appreciation to: 
 

Scott Nash, the Mayor of Randwick City Council, his Councillors, Ray Brownlee, the 
General Manager of Randwick Council and his staff.  The Council’s continuing support in 
relation to Coogee Oval and Latham Park is greatly appreciated. 

The volunteer assistance of the following coaches and managers throughout the season – 
Danny Grant, Damian Ryan, Chris Coleman, Andrew Bloxsom, Gary Munday, John 
Maxwell, Jeffery Sayle, Damian Cahill, Ben Rutherford, Bill Davies, Ray Jennings, Jayson 
Brewer, Jon Delaney, Penne Te Hira, Michael Michaels, Vlad Savovsky, Ben Meyers, 
Nathan McMahon, Emanuel Kaissis, Tony Palmier, Briant Kareroa, Terry McMahon, Brad 
Bishop, Barry Quinn, Allen Stutchbury, Peter Meagher, Dave Habler, Ross Curtis, Ian 
Holder, Michael Radziowsky, Viv Weatherall and Keith Holmes. 

The Club’s medical team under Dr Joe Casamento. 

The Club’s physiotherapists headed by Life Member Diane Long. 

The Club’s ball boy squad under Lisa Ellis. 

Time Keeper Richard Brincat. 

Club trainers under the direction of Head Trainer Andrew James. 

Ground announcer Tim Burgess. 

Match day assistants Doug Eggins, Steve Holten, Tim Burgess, Richard Brincat and their 
leader Michael Lewis. 

The incredible work of Clarissa Luxford who has assisted in the development of the web 
page and prepares the Club’s weekly newsletter. 

The Club’s Statistician Doug Alexander who works behind the scenes, working daily on the 
production of all statistical information. He completes the incredible work of weekly collating 
all information from the weekends’ matches into readable data. It is a very difficult task that 
requires patience and a sense of humour. 

The Club’s Archivist and Historian, Robert Outterside – the Club salutes your incredible 
drive, precision and enthusiasm for all things Randwick 

Photographers Brett Dooley, Michael Emery, Simon Galpern and David Lyon, for their 
pictorial record of the season 

Dan Dowe for the Thursday night barbeques and refreshments 

Peter Sweeney, Chairman of the Randwick Rugby Foundation and his Directors for 
generous support 

Jeffery Sayle, President of the Randwick Rugby Licensed Club and his Directors for their 
generous support 

Randwick Rugby Juniors headed by Scott Heathwood 

Sydney South Rugby Referees Association headed by Nicholas Guyatt 

Our Club’s General Manager, Tony Lewis 

To the Club’s loyal supporters that continue to turn up year after year and make Coogee 
Oval such a fantastic place to play rugby. 
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 General Managers Report 
 

The Randwick Rugby Club enjoyed an interesting year in 2011 with impressive individual and 
team performances at different times throughout the season complementing the vision of the 
Randwick Rugby Council under the leadership of Anthony Bell. 

The Rugby Club enjoyed a season on the pitch where six teams made the Semi-Finals. 
Unfortunately no Randwick Rugby team made a Grand Final and that is how we measure  
success. 

The Club celebrated the achievements of the 2011 Colts program under the leadership of Jayson 
Brewer; management of Michael Radziowsky and Keith Holmes and coaching team led by Jon 
Delaney and his staff. The First Grade Colts team was cruelly robbed of a famous victory in the 
Semi-Final against Sydney University who were on the rack. We also celebrated an incredible 
year by Third Grade Colts who made it to the Semi-Finals by not losing a game in the second 
round. Unfortunately they lost to Manly in the Semi-Final but we must acknowledge the players 
and coaches Emanuel Kaissis, Tony Palmier and Briant Kareroa on a great job done. 

In 2011 Randwick Rugby entered a team in the Meldrum Cup - "Subbies" rugby. The team, after 
a difficult start to the season, finished second in the competition. After bizarre circumstances the 
team was demoted to fifth and bundled out in the Semi-Final. The Fifth Grade competition proved 
to be a master stroke because it enabled the Club to have depth when injuries hit later in the  
season. Players and coaches Bill Davies and Ray Jennings are to be congratulated on the  
season's effort. 

Randwick Rugby again enjoyed huge representative success. The success of this group was 
capped off with Kurtley Beale winning the coveted John Eales medal. The Club also celebrated 
Matt Giteau becoming a ‘Galloping Green'; his appearance was crucial to First Grade making the 
top six, his two passes against Norths, which resulted in tries to Ethan Ford, were brilliant. The 
Club also enjoyed seeing one of its favourite sons, Sekope Kepu, dominate both at Super 15  
level and for Australia. He is a great Club man and was the Randwick Rugby’s Most Valuable 
Player in 2010. The return of our star recruiting tool Drew Mitchell to the playing field was another 
highlight. 

In the 2011 NSW Junior Rugby State Championships Randwick teams performed with  
exceptional results. The under 12s were crowned State Champions, the under 11s lost the  
Semi-Final by the narrowest of margins and both under 10 teams were very successful. The  
under 14, 15 and 16 teams all performed above expectations. The Coogee faithful enjoyed 
watching the Village Clubs play curtain raisers to the First Grade team throughout the season  
especially the exhilarating U12 Coogee White vs South Coogee final. 

The Randwick Rugby Club had a number of events throughout 2011 but two that spring to mind 
which reflect the Randwick Rugby spirit were the 1971, 1981 and 1991 reunions and the Life 
Members medal presentation. They were both excellent and memorable events and it was great 
to see so many past players and valued contributors back at the Club. Bob Outterside was a  
driving force of these two events. 

In 2011 the Randwick Rugby Club, with the support of Club benefactor Jon Collins, employed Jim 
Dubos as Development Officer. This enabled the Club to support junior rugby development in  
local schools via coaching programs and school-specific gala days. We were able to ensure our 
junior program had focus and a point of contact. Feedback from the initiatives has been very  
positive. 
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It has been an interesting year financially for the Randwick Rugby Club, with the continued global 
economic crisis taking its toll on sponsorship for 2011. We have been fortunate to off-set this 
through different revenue streams through the following:- 

1. Gate revenue increased by 30% of budget in 2011 

2.  Events - the ‘Hall of Fame' lunch which was 25% of revenue 

3.  New sponsors e.g. Girvan Waugh, Vachie, Body Science, Salmat, Royal Randwick Fruit 
 Market and MLC Advice Randwick 

4.  100% player subs paid in 2011 

5.  Strong financial management 

I take this opportunity to express my sincerest gratitude to our many sponsors and partners. Your 
support is never taken for granted and we look forward to working with you all to grow Randwick 
Rugby well into the future. The Randwick Rugby Club is indebted to its sponsors and 2011 was 
no different. Without the support of Peter's of Kensington, Girvan Waugh, Body Science,  
AllightSykes, Royal Randwick Fruit Market, Sydney City Motor Group, NG Farah,  
Taylor Woodings, MLC Advice Randwick, Cartwright Insurance, Divcall, Grinners Catering, 
Vachie Teamwear, Coogee Café, Eastside Physiotherapy, Wireless2Way, Salmat, Beirsdorf, 
Walsh's Pharmacy, Pattons, ATF and Computer Associates we would not only struggle to survive 
but the opportunity to promote the game of rugby within the Randwick area would be severely 
diminished. 

We also thank all of our other valued supporters and suppliers who assist us to provide the best 
possible variety of rugby programs. 

The other positive aspect of marketing in 2011 at Randwick Rugby was the further development 
of the web page www.randwickrugby.com.au as a communication tool for our members. The 
number of Randwick Rugby hits in September alone is 645,000 on the web side and 22,000  
dedicated visits to the web site. This is an increase of 300% this year. The highlight is August 
where we had 30,000 dedicated visits and 864,000 hits. The flow of information via the much  
anticipated weekly newsletter which included match reports, coaches comments, news stories, 
photo gallery etc meant that the web page was the first point of call for general public, media, our 
members, supporters and players. The new Twitter medium has also been a popular  
communication source to the followers and players. 

May I take this opportunity to thank the Randwick Rugby Council and, in particular, President  
Anthony Bell, Treasurer Quentin Olde, Michael Jorgensen, Doug Eggins, Warwick Waugh and 
Simon Poidevin for their continued support and guidance. I would like to thank this group for their 
efforts in supporting the concept of the Randwick Rugby Hall of Fame lunch. The success of this 
day is due to the drive of this group in selling the event to corporate Sydney. The day is a huge 
bonus for the Club’s profile and the ability to put on such an event again displays our creative  
energy. 

In addition, I sincerely thank all the staff at Randwick Rugby and the many volunteers throughout 
the Club who have put in so much effort over the past twelve months especially the match day 
assistants Doug Eggins, Steve Holton, Tim Burgess, Richard Brincat and their leader Michael 
Lewis. I would like to thank all the coaches under the guidance of Club Coach Craig Morrison; the 
trainers, doctors, strappers, physiotherapistss and volunteers. It would be remiss of me not to 
mention the exceptional work of Clarissa Luxford who has assisted in the development of the web 
page and been key to our weekly newsletter - thank you. 

http://www.randwickrugby.com.au
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Finally, the most important group - the players. Under the leadership of Chris Barron, Peter 
Wright and Club Captain Tom Weber no task was a problem. The effort by this leadership group 
to assist in ensuring payment of player subscriptions was appreciated by the Club. I look forward 
to assisting this group in 2012 with a club tour and fundraising. 

There is no club without the players. Without your presence we don't have a rugby club. For your 
efforts and enthusiasm I am truly grateful. 

It has been a difficult year on the pitch for a Club accustomed to success - my advice is that in 
times like this we pull together, support the decisions made and move forward. 

 

Tony Lewis 

General Manager 
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Club Coach Report 
 

I would like to congratulate the players, coaches and managers for all their hours of time, effort, 
dedication and training that led to six out of our seven Grade and Colts sides playing in the Semi-
Final in 2011, along with Fifth Grade who contested the playoffs in the Meldrum Cup. 

With a real focus on building for the future through our Colts program, the preseason included a 
training camp at Kincumber with 35 targeted players from Grade and Colts in attendance, along 
with the First and Second Grade and Colts coaches. This flowed into the pre-season where we 
did a lot of our work on and around Coogee Beach both mid-week with Rob Derbyshire and 
Andrew James’ special Saturday morning beach sessions. Terry McMahon was always on hand 
to encourage the boys up the stairs at South Coogee and through the water at Clovelly. The 
benefits could be seen immediately with Colts 1 leading the ladder after eight rounds of 
competition and every side in the Club once again in Semi-Final contention.  

For our top four Grade sides to make the Semi-Finals again this season was a great effort that 
only one other Club could equal and should not be undervalued. Given the injury toll on the Club 
and the unavailability of rep players with no fewer than 15 regular First Graders either on rep duty 
or injured during the finals and throughout the season. The flow-on effect of this is obvious and 
Second, Third and Fourth Grade were unable to field a similar side for the entire second round, 
which impacted on training. The coaches and players worked hard to make up for these 
disruptions with First Grade notching up our first win over Easts in more than two seasons in the 
Elimination Semi-Final and let’s not forget the turnaround that Second Grade performed on Manly 
the same weekend. Third Grade was close to the top of the ladder virtually all season and Fourth 
Grade stormed into the finals when they had been looking doubtful with six matches to play. Fifth 
Grade did a great job making the play-offs of the Meldrum Cup, but was again overrun by injuries 
at finals time.   

Our motto “Whole Club approach” struck a chord with the Colts this season with our best results 
for many years in the U21s. With First and Third Grade getting through to the Semi-Final and 
Second Colts in contention for much of the season, Jayson Brewer (Colts Coordinator) and the 
coaches and managers are to be congratulated. The success this year is a shining light and 
highlights where the Club’s future success must lie. They are an investment in our future and the 
focus on Colts recruitment this year has been repaid by the performance of the players and the 
efforts of the coaches and managers.  

Likewise, we have enjoyed success again at the junior level this year with the U12s taking out the 
State Championships whilst the U11s lost only one match narrowly to Manly who went on to win 
the tournament comfortably. The U10s were able to field two sides which is great for the future 
strength in this age group, with the U13s and U14s finishing second in their respective pools. We 
also fielded sides in the U15s and U16s and we all look forward to seeing these guys playing 
Colts in a few more years.   Like the Colts, our juniors hold the key to the Club’s future and the 
work of all those in our Village Clubs and the junior rep program is not only greatly appreciated, 
but essential to Randwick Rugby’s heritage. Jim Dubos has done a great job here along with his 
coaches and selectors, many of whom are ex-players of the Senior Club which gives a great deal 
of knowledge, experience and integrity to the Juniors program.  
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All in all, 2011 has presented the Club with some real challenges with the results of recent years 
masking an over-reliance on top level rep players and a lack of a well-planned recruitment and 
development pathway for young players. The challenge ahead is to ensure we retain and develop 
the talent we have in our stable, as well as recruit young talent into our program so that we can 
work with them from a young age and mould them into the next stable of Randwick 
representative players. Our Junior and Colts programs are a vital cog in that wheel and the 
successes of this year need to be multiplied. One thing is for sure, we will be working hard to 
ensure that our Grade and Colts sides go one more week next season, with our sights firmly set 
on doing things differently in 2012, to ensure a different result. 

Thank you to all the supporters and our generous sponsors who have really got behind the Club 
this season with great crowds at Coogee Oval on a Saturday spurring on the players. Everyone 
associated with the Club shares in the positive support that is given and this can only inspire us 
to bigger and better things. We have many people who contribute a great deal without 
recognition, so to all those volunteers both throughout the week and on weekends, whether at the 
oval or in the club house, on the training park at Latham or in the medical rooms, running water 
or filling the bottles, taking photos or timing matches, announcing teams or putting them on our 
website, a huge thank you. 

You are the spirit of this great Club. 

Craig Morrison 

Club Coach 
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First Grade Coach Report 
 

While a Semi-Final appearance might be satisfactory for some clubs, we always set the bar 
higher and therefore there is disappointment about going out a week before the Grand Final. 
Only a week earlier, the team overcame Easts in the Semi-Final, our first victory over our local 
rivals in over two years with plenty of character and commitment on show in the dying minutes in 
particular. However, the injury toll on the Club and the unavailability of representative players 
made a mismatch out of the preliminary final, where Eastwood showed off all of their premiership 
credentials. The absence of up to fifteen regular First Graders through injury and rep duty 
presented many challenges as well as opportunities to other players to not just get a taste of first 
Grade but become part of the fabric of the team.  

The season began with disappointment as we stumbled in the early games managing only one 
from five however, there were positive signs from the matches against Easts and Eastwood that 
our young and inexperienced guns were learning each week and by the time we met West 
Harbour we had started to play some of the football that we had been working towards with 
plenty of support, quick recycle and flair in attack. A shock loss to Penrith the week after was a 
huge reality check for the team but the response was very positive with six wins from the 
following seven matches. With younger players Maraki Toa, Ethan Ford and Stephen Noriega 
given a chance, they took it with both hands and were well supported by other more experienced 
youngsters in Toby Browne, Bevu Tuqiri, David Parsons, Al McFarland and Clinton Sills who was 
the Shute Shield’s leading try scorer at that point. Tim Wright had shown his experience 
throughout the first round and with newcomers Luke Parsons and Geoff Ingram, they were really 
helping the younger players adapt to the step up.  

The loss to Eastwood in round 14 was a real blow to our momentum, not because of the result 
but the injury toll which saw eight forced replacements in 60 minutes and began the drain on 
personnel from which we never really recovered. A hard fought loss to Easts in the dying minutes 
a week later was difficult to take as the team had shown real character to lead the game from the 
start with plenty of grit in defense, but injuries to Patrick Phibbs, Ben Mowen, Lotu Taukeiaho, 
David Vizer, Clinton Sills, Christian Lealiifano, Tim Wright, Tom Joseph, Henry Vanderglass, 
Seilala Lam, Luke Parsons, David Parsons, Justin Terry, Afa Pakalani made the job that much 
harder. The unavailability of Phoenix Battye and Cruze Ah-Nau for four weeks, along with every 
rep player registered to Randwick made the road to the finals problematic.  

As we had done all season however, we managed to bounce back with wins against West 
Harbour, Penrith and Norths, with a very welcomed appearance by Matt Giteau in the myrtle 
green to keep us in the top six. The leadership, experience and class of Captain Tim McGann, 
Josh Valentine and Shaun Foley had by this stage well and truly shown its hand as these three 
played a huge role in getting us to the finals. The final four rounds saw losses to a desperate 
Souths, a Uni side laden with Wallabies and super 15 players in the run on side and on the 
bench, a high scoring win over Gordon where we conceded 40 points and a 39-33 loss to Manly, 
which highlighted defensive lapses that had emerged. Not the greatest lead into the finals but a 
fifth place finish meant we were there and anything is possible….look at 2010. 
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In finals football you call on experience and tenacity and Nio Halangahu and Tim Maxwell 
delivered against Easts in the Semi-Final with Nio making the critical plays at set piece and Maxi 
playing a great back rowers role at the death. Ben Mowen marked his second match of the 
season with a try and a turnover to win the game on full time 28-26…and we were one game 
short of a Grand Final appearance. No doubt the six-day turn around and injury toll of the last 
month did not help in the Semi-Final against the minor premiers. On top of that, it is difficult for a 
side with one contracted footballer to match up against a side with more than eleven. Reaching 
the final four was an achievement in itself and whilst we are disappointed with how we went out, 
Eastwood and Uni are the bench marks on and off the field and we have some ground to make 
up if we are going to realistically expect the results of days gone by. 

With the dust now settled we can look back on this season as one with many ups and downs and 
not a great deal of continuity when it came to performance. What is a clear positive is that the 
number of young players including Maraki Toa, Justin Terry, Steven Noriega, Tom Connor, Bryce 
Speechley, Tom Weatherall, Dominic Bower, Michael Gibson, Cameron Kesby, George Fifita, 
Steve Bennie, Anaru Matthews, Jack Tovey, Liam Walker and Ethan Ford who tasted First 
Grade this year, will be far better players next season for the experience they have gained this 
year.  

A significant positive is that we finished fourth in a year where games played by a Super 15 
contracted player totaled twelve for the season, with Ben Mowen and Adam Freier playing three 
games each for Randwick in 2011. This is significant in the current climate of clubs competing in 
the finals.  

The First Grade side showed real leadership with the player group beginning their unit sessions 
ahead of the other Grades on training nights and working extra sessions into our program ahead 
of the finals. They also led the way in attending functions held at other Clubs post-match as well 
as functions at the Club including our season launch and players’ functions. They were a very 
visible and active part of the playing group off the field. 

It was great to see new players such as Neville Magee, Luke Parsons, Geoff Ingram, Jai Ayoub 
and Steven Noriega get their share of Randwick First Grade experience whilst Finau Makamaka 
burst onto the scene this season having played Third Grade in 2010. These are the experiences 
players need to aspire to their dreams and these players all have plenty more to achieve at the 
Club.  

Off the field there has been a great team working to get the players on the field in the best 
possible shape. To my fellow coaches Danny Grant and Damian Ryan, thank you for your 
support, expertise and leadership in preparing the team throughout the season. Thank you also 
to, Andrew Blades for his technical and tactical expertise in getting as much as he did out of our 
very inexperienced front row, Mark Ella for his insight and rugby wisdom imparted on the players, 
Andrew James for all his skill and conditioning work in the pre-season, at training and with Paris 
Antoniades on game day, Rob Derbyshire for his work pre-season with the Colts and Grade 
players and his strength sessions in the gym, Di Long and Jo Casamento for all their time in 
caring and treating the players as well as consulting with the coaches. Finally, to the managers, 
Terry McMahon who is so thorough and dedicated to his role as well as caring for players and 
supporting the coaches, Brad Bishop who manages the official side of game day with such 
precision and diligence and Barry Quinn who has everything I ever ask for ready, a minute before 
I ask for it.  
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A number of Randwick greats presented jerseys to the players on game day including Mark Ella, 
Ewen McKenzie, Simon Poidevin, Warwick Waugh, Jeffrey Sayle, Bob Outterside, Phil Willey, 
Kurtley Beale, Ian Kennedy and Andrew James. Congratulations to Tim Maxwell on his final 
season for the ‘Wicks’. 

To the players, coaches and managers in Second, Third, Fourth and Fifth Grade, the Club 
committee and management, thank you all for your support and expertise in our endeavor to 
produce the best players we can and therefore the best First Grade side we can deliver.  

And thank you to everyone that supported our First Grade side in the stands, at the Club, in the 
streets and in the bush. You are the spirit of this great Club with which we are all proud to be 
associated. 

Thank you 

Craig Morrison 
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First Grade Season Results 

Shute Shield 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Warringah L 23-27 W 29-27 

Parramatta W 59-19 W 71-40 

Eastwood L 11-23 L 14-38 

Eastern suburbs L 23-27 L 16-20 

West Harbour W 44-32 W 30-5 

Penrith L 27-28 W 52-38 

Northern suburbs W 30-10 W 21-13 

Southern Districts W 37-30 L 24-37 

Sydney University L 12-29 L 17-65 

Gordon W 42-18 W 56-42 

Manly W 33-31 L 33-39 

Elimination Semi- Final 

Eastern suburbs W 28-26   

Semi-Final 

Eastwood L 15-77   

    

Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries^ 101 100 

Goals 70 68 

P/F Goals 34 35 

Points 747 741 

^ Includes 2 penalty tries   

   

Game Details  

Played 24  

Won 13  

Drawn 0  

Lost 11  

Bonus Points 17  

Points For 747  

Points Against 741  

   

63 players appeared in First grade  

   

Most appearances: Tim Maxwell (22)  

Leading try scorer: Clinton Sills (14)  

Leading points scorer: Toby Browne (224)  

Best and Fairest: Tim McGann  

First grade debuts: (22) Jai Ayoub, Brendan Barnes, Phoenix Battye, 

 Dominic Bower, Tom Connor, Adrian Duchini,  

 George Fifita, Ethan Ford, Michael Gibson, 

 Mathew Giteau, Geoffrey Ingram, Cameron 

 Christian Lealiifano, Neville Magee, Finau 

 Anaru Mathews, Steven Noriega, Atiele Pakalani 

 Luke Parsons, Bryce Speechley, Liam Walker, 

 Henry (Tom) Weatherall.  
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Second Grade Coach Report 
 

I tender this report as a critical review of the 2011 season with the view that the players involved 
in the campaign can develop and be better players for their experiences this year. 

Reserve Grade is a notoriously difficult grade to achieve premiership success in. There are 
unique challenges for a Reserve Grade team which are inherent to the nature, position and 
make-up of the competition itself. Yet every year one team overcomes these difficulties and 
challenges to become the Premiers. 

Giving due weight to these inherent difficulties, I believe the Randwick Reserve Grade side of 
2011 under-performed. From a subjective point of view, the playing potential of the extended 
Randwick Reserve Grade player group was of a high standard. We lacked experience in key 
positions, but could point to the innate talent of individuals and look to their continuing 
development for our belief and confidence going forward. 

The challenge for the Coaching group in 2011 proved to be convincing the playing group to trust 
our game plan and have belief in their individual and collective ability! 

Success in a rugby season can be judged on many levels. 

There is of course, the competition ladder. 

There is the level of enjoyment and camaraderie that is achieved within the squad inclusive of 
Coaches and Management. There is the advancement throughout the season of an individual 
player’s and squad’s rugby education.  

All of these measures are inter-related, yet not necessarily achieved at the same level 
throughout a season. When they are all achieved by a team at a high level in a season, it 
generally results in a premiership. It is, understandably, a difficult thing to achieve and requires a 
commitment to the common purpose by all involved.  I will be assessing these three components 
to review the 2011 season. 

The 2011 Colin Caird Shield quest was both interesting and challenging. Put in the positive and 
measurable perspective of the competition ladder, it was a relatively successful season in terms 
of being finals contenders and playing competitively in both of the finals games contested. 
Overall however, it was a season marred by inconsistency between match day performances 
and inconsistency within match day performances. 

A clinical review of each of our match results throughout the season reveals a distinct lack of 
respect for the bonus point system and more pointedly an apparent lack of respect for the role 
that defence plays in the overall success of a rugby season. 

My critical assessment of this is that there was a lack of belief, experience and maturity within 
the playing group that significantly hampered our success. 

The level of enjoyment and camaraderie made the season an enjoyable one. However, the 
depth of individual commitment to the ethic of the team fell short of that which is required for 
premiership success.  

As a group it would be hard to imagine a nicer collection of young men, eager, respectful and 
committed. [Up to a point] While they were competitive as individuals, there was not enough 
team driven focus for success to carry us through the tougher game day challenges. 

From my perspective as Coach we lacked the personal connections or the team dynamic of 
mateship that is required when questions are asked in the trenches. Attempts to improve this 
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A new coaching staff with a different approach to playing the game will guarantee an alternate 
tactical and strategic approach and therefore an alternate Rugby education for the player group. 
Over the course of the year our game plan was continually refined to suit both the continual 
changes to playing personnel and the group’s incapacity to completely adapt to a game plan that 
took them outside their comfort zones. 

The education of the player group was there, but how much of it was embraced is questionable. 
The proof of this was when pressure was applied at the coal face in games and players would 
revert back to tactics from previous seasons and were therefore at odds with the then current 
game plan. This was of course counter-productive to our success.  

Within these measures of a season’s success, I feel we lacked the crucial marginal 
improvements or efforts that distinguish those who are happy to compete as opposed to those 
who strive to win.  

This is what I meant in my final address to the players after the Semi-Final when I said we 
missed “the detail” 

A Rugby season is made up of much more than the two nights a week training sessions and the 
game on Saturday. A successful Rugby season is built around a squad committed and bound by 
a common purpose to succeed. 

As in most team sports, this type of success requires sacrifice.  It is this area that I believe the 
majority of individuals of the playing group need to address for any success in their future Rugby 
seasons. I am not talking about training attendance or the willingness to stay back late for video 
sessions. Their commitment was first class in these areas. It was in the less tangible areas that 
reward the team with an ‘us and them’ siege mentality. Where your drive and desire will push 
you to support the team’s results. Where you call on the support of your teammates knowing it 
will come. Making that extra effort or sacrificing your personal agenda for the greater good of the 
team.  

I did pre-empt the start of this report by stating it would be a critical review of our rugby 
performance. Having completed that, I believe there is much to celebrate about the 2011 
season.  

Having gone through the growing pains of a new coaching staff with a new tactical approach and 
the introduction of many players new to Reserve Grade and indeed Randwick Rugby, I firmly 
believe another season together would result in the foundation of a formidable team with an 
already established rapport and understanding. 

As Coach, I was always excited by the potential in the side and on occasion this potential was 
realised in match day performances. With a greater familiarity between coaching staff and 
players, the 2012 season could build significantly on the work and results achieved this season. 

It is always an honour and privilege to be given a Rugby coaching position. This affords you the 
opportunity to work with people who enjoy the game. Better than this, the stage you work on with 
these people requires teamwork, sacrifice, selflessness, expertise and many other virtues that 
reveal the character of an individual. A season of rugby is a great journey to share.  
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Thanks to each and every player who took the field. It is my fervent hope that you learned 
something new or in some way benefitted from the experience. 

My thanks and those of the team go to: 

My assistant Coaches Andrew Bloxsom and Gary Munday for their unerring commitment, hard 
work, support, and tactical and strategic contributions to the season. They both added to the 
personality of the squad and were invaluable in their interactions with the player group. 

My Team Managers, Allen Stutchbury and Peter Meagher who were unfailing in their support and 
reliability and  who were always ready to go beyond the brief of their positions to assist the 
campaign. 

Our trainers Mick Smith and Gareth Smith for their efforts and sage advice throughout the 
season. 

Mark Ella and Andrew Blades for their generosity in sharing their knowledge and commitment to 
playing Randwick Rugby. 

Jeff Sayle for his interest, and his own unique personal contributions to the team’s success. 

Craig Morrison as Club Coach and First Grade Coach for his advice, direction and support 
throughout the season. 

The other Club Coaches for sharing the vision and direction of success for Randwick Rugby. 

Finally, to the Board and members of the Randwick Rugby Club I extend my appreciation for the 
privilege of coaching at the Galloping Greens. 

 

Chris Coleman 
Coach 
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Second Grade Season Results 

Colin Caird Shield 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Warringah L 7-12 W 47-15 

Parramatta W 69-0 W 60-15 

Eastwood L 10-23 L 3-18 

Eastern suburbs W 19-5 L 20-22 

West Harbour W 22-20 W 45-26 

Penrith W 20-17 W 113-5 

Northern suburbs L 8-16 W 50-22 

Southern Districts L 24-30 L 23-28 

Sydney University W 44-26 L 7-48 

Gordon W 41-22 W 61-22 

Manly L 22-30 L 15-57 

Elimination Semi Final 

Manly W 36-28   

Preliminary Final 

Eastwood L 15-28   

   

Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries 110 79 

Goals 75 39 

P/F Goals 27 27 

Points 781 554 

   

Game Details  

Played 24  

Won 13  

Drawn 0  

Lost 11  

Bonus Points 14  

Points For 781  

Points Against 554  

   

72 players appeared in Reserve Grade  

   

Most appearances: Jack Tovey (22)  

Leading try scorer: Michael Gibson (13)  

Leading points scorer: Jai Ayoub (100)  

Best and Fairest: Jack Tovey  
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Third Grade Coach Report 
 

As defending 2010 Premiers, Third Grade finished 2011 unsuccessful, being defeated in the 
major final by Easts. 

The Third Grade team made a good start to the 2011 season to lead the competition but 
unfortunately injuries, attitude and lack of preparation at training took to toll. The team finished 
the season in second place. The team scored 834 points, including 129 tries and won the Club’s 
award for most tries being attained, the Laurie Argue Trophy. 

It is easy to make excuses for the loss in the Grand Final – two players ineligible to play, leaving 
the team with 13 and using five Fifth Graders. The Fifth Graders played well and we thank them 
for making themselves available as reserves. John Maxwell’s voice can still be heard telling the 
players to think about the loss in the off-season and use it as an incentive for the future and the 
Club in 2012, not thinking that it will all happen to just turn up, and to wear the myrtle green with 
pride. 

A lot of exciting play early in the season gave the players the opportunity to play in a higher 
grade. All in all some l75 players passed through Third Grade through the year and a lot of fun 
was had together as a group. The only disappointment being we could not repeat last season’s 
effort. There was too much talent in the lower grades not to win a premiership and contribute to 
the Club Championship points. Next year, with another season under the belt and a more 
positive outlook,  will be successful. 

Special mention must be made of the managers Ross Curtis and Dave Habler, also trainers 
Ryan Kolster and Nick Martin. Finally, the spectators who every week watched Third Grade 
“thank you” for your support and encouragement. 

Nothing comes unless you want it and earn it. You are the future – make it happen. 

Congratulations to Chris Barron for winning Best and Fairest, Darren O’Shea for most 
appearances and Michael Gibson, top try scorer. 

 

John Maxwell and Jeffery Sayle 
Coaches 
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Third Grade Season Results 

J R Henderson Shield 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Warringah W 48-0 W 34-10 

Parramatta W 40-12 W 54-7 

Eastwood W 20-12 W 62-7 

Eastern suburbs W 26-15 L 7-12 

West Harbour W 36-15 D 22-22 

Penrith W 77-10 W 103-0 

Northern suburbs W 33-18 W 30-22 

Southern Districts W 48-8 W 34-5 

Sydney University L 10-13 L 19-25 

Gordon W 47-19 W 71-5 

Manly L 5-7 L 5-10 

Preliminary Final  

Eastern Suburbs L 3-30   

   

Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries^ 129 39 

Goals 78 22 

P/F Goals 11 15 

Points 834 284 

^ Includes 1 penalty try   

   

Game Details  

Played 23  

Won. 16  

Drawn. 1  

Lost 6  

Bonus Points 19  

Points For 834  

Points Against 284  

   

75 players appeared in third grade  

   

Most appearances: Darren O'Shea (21)  

Leading try scorer: Michael Gibson (13)  

Leading points scorer: Michael Gibson (128)  

Best and Fairest: Chris Barron  
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Fourth Grade Coach Report 
 

The 2011 season was a good year for Fourth Grade however injuries, continued player 
movement in higher grades and the departure of key players late in the season, cut short an 
impressive finish to the season with the side bowing out a week before the Grand Final to local 
rivals Easts. 

The team in 2011 suffered several tight losses throughout the year of seven points or less, a 
frustrating 'what if' scenario springs to mind had the tight losses been wins. A week off in the first 
week of the semis would have made a huge difference given the unavailability of several players 
through injury. 

The team was led from the front by Best and Fairest winner and Captain Tom Jenkins. 

The season highlights included a great win against Sydney Uni at Coogee Oval when the Fourth 
Grade team was the only Randwick team to taste victory as well as a completely dominant 
performance against Norths. 

Thanks to all players throughout the season - we had plenty of fun but were always willing to put 
the hard yards in when it counted. Special mention must go to the Fifth Grade guys who were 
always willing to back up as reserves without the guarantee of a getting a run. Todd Martin 
showed what a true Club man he is by playing in positions such as lock, backrow, fly-half and the 
centres - always putting the team before himself. This for me is exactly what Fourth Grade is 
about and should continue to be. 

I'd like to thank our trainer, Nick Martin for his hard work and dedication throughout the year as 
well as manager Ian Holder, who was always willing to do whatever possible to assist. DJ Cahill 
was Fourth Grade Co-Coach before his Australian Services Rugby Union coaching commitments 
proved too much but his on-going support throughout the season was much appreciated. Thanks 
also to Craig Morrison and Tony Lewis for their ongoing support throughout the season. 

 

Ben Rutherford 
Coach 
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Fourth Grade Season Results 

J R Henderson Cup 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Warringah W 49-0 W 38-24 

Parramatta W 31-10 W 62-5 

Eastwood W 17-5 W 39-3 

Eastern suburbs L 12-15 L 15-17 

West Harbour L 3-10 L 17-19 

Penrith W 41-5 W 46-0 

Northern suburbs L 10-14 W 38-13 

Southern Districts W 40-10 W 13-6 

Sydney University L 11-18 W 25-20 

Gordon W 75-0 W 38-17 

Manly W 33-8 L 5-20 

Elimination Semi Final 

Nortern Suburbs W 19-13   

Preliminary Final  

Eastern Suburbs L 6-18   

   

Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries 105 36 

Goals 61 18 

P/F Goals 12 18 

Points 683 270 

   

Game Details  

Played 24  

Won 16  

Drawn 0  

Lost 8  

Bonus Points 18  

Points For 683  

Points Against 270  

   

83 players appeared in fourth grade  

   

Most appearances: Sam Milgate (24)  

Leading try scorer: Andrew Wing Kee (8)  

Leading points scorer: Trent Beilkin (60)  

Best and Fairest: Tom Jenkins  
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Fifth Grade Report 

 

The strength of any rugby club is measured against the depth of players they have which gives 
importance to having an active Fifth Grade side that plays every week. 

In previous years the Fifth Grade side has wandered from club to club looking for games with little 
success, this of course is somewhat demoralising for the eager players who want to show their 
wares to the coaches above. 

This year however was a year of change for the Fifth Grade side, Tony Lewis and Craig Morrison 
wanted the Fifths to have a game of footy every week and worked tirelessly to have the Randwick 
Fifth Grade side entered into a Sub-District Competition - the Meldrum Cup! 

This of course was met with some "stiff opposition" from the Sub-Districts Rugby Board, they 
"weren't keen" to have us! However, after requiring Randwick to sign away their life (so to speak) 
with heavy restrictions and heavy penalties if we failed at any juncture they finally agreed to let us 
into their competition. 

Being able to stand in front of the players and assuring them that they would get a game every 
week (not like previous years) was gratifying. The look on their faces said it all. Players who were 
previously only getting 10 minutes in Fourth Grade were coming to me asking if they could play 
Fifth Grade, "I just want to play footy” was their plea. 

This of course brought its own set of problems, how was I going to manage 40+ players on my 
own ???  I needed help and Fifth Grade is not an attractive option for most people to consider 
helping. For one we would never play at our home base of Coogee Oval and it was most likely we 
would never see any/all of the other Grades play as our game time was 3pm and that we play at 
venue that required "satellite navigation" to find! 

Once again Tony and Craig provided a solution and invited Ray Jennings to be a Co-Coach of 
the Fifth Grade side - having known Ray for many years it was a great relief to have him a part of 
our team. Ray brought with him his vast rugby experience and his knowledge of how to play 
"Running Rugby". 

Thank you Ray I/we really appreciated your tireless contribution to the Fifth Grade Team. 
Good and great teams are made up of individuals and we were fortunate enough to have a 
number of "senior" skilled individuals that were the backbone of the Fifth Grade side: 
 

Marty Kiernan; 

Chris Vallis; 

Jioje Aropio; 

David Farrugia; 

Sam McGregor and 

Junior Mercuri 

 

When mixed with the youth of the team it brought great balance to the side and allowed us to play 
a style of rugby that is unique to the Randwick Club. 
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Apart from the players mentioned above I thought the following players had an outstanding year: 

Todd Martin; 

Drew Ferguson; 

Peter Kaissis; 

Michael Kaissis; 

Rob Polosak; and 

Scott Malone. 

I want to make special mention of one player who at the start of the season just wanted to be a 
part of the team - Craig Partridge - you were a great credit to the team for which we all thank you 
and you also managed a few games in Fourth Grade who were deserving of your efforts. 
 
I thought the Fifth Grade side played some "outstanding footy" at times and it was disappointing 
that no-one from the higher grades other than John Maxwell ever saw them play "true" Randwick 
Rugby - thanks John for your attendance at our games, it was always noticed and well 
appreciated by the players - thank you also for providing opposed work with our team throughout 
the year, it was really well received by all the players who participated. 
I thought there were 2 outstanding games during the year that are worth mentioning: 
 
1.    The game against Redfield at home (Latham Park) was a tense and torrid affair, we pre
 pared very well during the week only to go down in the last 5 seconds of the game - the 
 lesson there for all is that good teams know how to win ! 
 
2.     The other game was against Maccabi (Christenson Park), again we prepared well for game 
 with some very good opposed work against Third Grade during the week - we played some 
 "cracking Rugby" which saw us blow them off the park, everyone rose to the occasion - our 
 scrum led the way! 

It is also worth mentioning that we also played against some "alcohol fuelled teams" (and their 
alcohol fuelled supporters) that were more at home at a "Neanderthals Picnic" than that of a 
Rugby ground - an experience that I "won’t treasure". 

So, was it worth the change to be involved in Sub-District football? If you ask the players I think 
they would say yes! However, the difficulty for us is that we have other teams in our Club to 
support where the Meldrum Cup teams are club sides with only one team. The restrictions on us 
are far more onerous than for those teams and if you consider the point that we don't look like we 
are part of the Randwick Club, it is a very fractured situation for us. 

Thank you for letting me be a part of the Fifth Grade side. I had an enjoyable if not memorable 
year. Thanks again to Tony and Craig for their support throughout the year. What we achieved is 
due in part to your tireless efforts and much appreciated and thanks again to Ray, I really 
appreciated everything he did for the team - I couldn't have done it without him. 
Look forward to seeing you all again in 2012. 

 
Ray Jennings & Bill Davies 
Coaches 
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Fifth Grade Season Results  MELDRUM CUP 

  Round    

Sydney Grammar Old Boys L 15-39   

Maccabi L 12-37   

Dee Why W 14-12   

Roseville W 25-20   

Terry Hills W 43-0   

Killara West Pymble W 83-0   

Dundas Vallet W 20-12   

Burraneer W 28-18   

Clovelly W 26-13   

Seaforth L 28-30   

Bankstown W 49-31   

Redfield L 16-18   

Manly Savers W 44-7   

Maccabi W 29-18   

Elimination Final 23/7/11 

Dundas Valley L 24-35   

 

Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries^ 72 41 

Goals 39 17 

P/F Goals 6 17 

Points 456 290 

^ includes 1 penalty try   

   

Game Details  

Played 15  

Won 10  

Drawn 0  

Lost 5  

Bonus Points 11  

Points For 456  

Points Against 290  

   

66 players appeared in Fifth Grade   

   

Most appearances: Drew Ferguson (13)  

Leading try scorer: Kea Pereira (7)  

Leading points scorer: Brendan Davis (54)  

Best and Fairest: Michael Kaissis 
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Colts Report 
 

Every player who represented the Colts group in 2011 can walk away from the season on a  

“high” as it was one of our best seasons in recent years. I would like to acknowledge all players, 
coaching staff and supporters for your support throughout the year. In looking at our season in 
review we had two teams just miss out on the Grand Final, players develop their rugby game and 
the Colt’s culture continued to grow. 

2011 was not without its challenges, a major injury toll mid-season, players being in their first 
year of Colts hitting the wall and various coaches taking ‘sabbaticals’ overseas were all issues 
with which we needed to deal. A management team and coaching group who were more than 
willing to support, move forward and challenge the boys- saw Colts ‘punch through’ the other 
side. The results and statistics are just numbers and what the season offered away from rugby 
was much more- a very tightly knit group. Our group motto ‘In the Deed the Glory’ and with the 
skill development and a program based on ‘excellence over excuses’ one can look back on a 
fantastic 2011 where a great base to build on has been established for next year.  

Thanks: 

To all the players who played Colts this season - an awesome group of young men. Also for 
your efforts in my first season as coordinator - Players were always willing to lend a hand, 
support each other and have pride in the jersey. 

To Keith Holmes who does so much for the Club behind the scenes, his support throughout 
the season and the shared vision we shared for Colts meant we could work side by side and 
bounce many ideas off each other. 

To Radsy - Legend- whose expertise in managerial components of rugby is way above that 
anticipated at Colts level. The amount of time and effort he put in always astounded me, as 
did his on-going support throughout 2011.  

To JD and Pene- from whom we learnt a lot throughout the season as result of the time and 
effort and the preparation put into First Colts. Your contribution was second to none.  

To the coaches, managers and physiotherapists of Seconds and Thirds, Nathan, Mick, Ben, 
Manny, Briant  Tony, Viv, Nicole and Stu – for the expertise, man-management, skills, 
dedication and love of rugby that you brought to the group this year. The boys and I are very 
appreciative of the hard work, creative coaching (where’s the rope?), and feedback you 
gave these boys throughout the season. 

Stephen and Patrick who were great when asked them to chat to the group, attend training - 
Pat even had a run with Seconds mid-season. 

Jeff Sayle - Jeff’s end of season rev-ups did not fall on deaf ears. 

Craig Morrison – Craig’s vision for the Club has helped me constantly this season. With an 
eye on the future Craig, Keith and I would often catch up for a ‘Soy flat white Latte’ and 
discuss player development, pathways and program overview.  

Club Council -  2012 will see a much-needed restructure of the rugby program. We have the 
resources, talent and base model to move forward in 2012. As Colts Coordinator I urge the 
board to support Colts as much as possible both on and off the rugby field. 

Tony Lewis and the board for your on-going support in guiding the ‘future of Randwick’ 
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Congratulations to the players who gained higher representative honors 

Tom Connor Australian Under 19 Academy v England 

Tom Connor First Grade Debut v Manly Round 22 2011 

Liam Walker and Tom Connor played for the Australian Barbarians vs. Waratah Academy 

Several players after the season will be selected in the Australian Academy and Under 20s train 
on squad.  As a group we wish them the best of luck and the experience it will bring you will be 
invaluable  

Congratulations to the following players who were awarded Best and Fairest for each team 

First Colts  Will Munro  

Second Colts  Tim Murray 

Third Colts  Stu McKenzie and Alex Isofea 

 

Congratulations to John Weatherall who was awarded Aiden Wilson Memorial Trophy for 

Colts Clubman of the Year 

 

Jayson Brewer 

Colts coaching coordinator  
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First Grade Colts Report 
 

After an encouraging turnaround in 2010, it was a good opportunity for Randwick First Grade 
Colts to continue to build and look to push for a place at the top of the competition ladder. There 
were a number of players returning from 2010 and with a greater emphasis on the recruitment of 
players into Colts, the signs were looking good at the beginning of the year.   

With an extra emphasis on conditioning and defence during the pre-season, the hard work paid 
off with the best possible start to the competition, winning our first 8 rounds. Winning 8 games in 
a row was a great for Randwick Colts as a whole as it got a lot of the Club’s supporters talking 
about the Colts again. Round 9 was to be the biggest games of the season so far, where the 
undefeated Randwick team were up against defending Premiers, Sydney Uni. In the first 60 
minutes, the game proved to be an arm wrestle but as ever the strength of Sydney Uni’s bench 
was to play a key role in the game and they ran out with a 40-20 win. This game in particular 
showed us what standard of rugby we needed to play in order to be competitive come Semi-Final 
time.  

We finished the first round of matches sitting third on the table, however, the second half of the 
season proved to be very frustrating from a coaching point of view. Injuries combined with 
inconsistent performances ensured we slipped up in close games against top 6 rivals Eastwood, 
Easts and Wests. As a group we needed to re-focus on some of the basics of the game, make 
better decisions when under pressure and play for the full 80 minutes. If we could do these things 
we knew we would come away with the results our efforts deserved. The last 6 games of the 
season saw the return of Liam Walker and Anaru Matthews from Grade and this, combined with 
the return of some players after long term injuries, got us back on track with wins against Norths 
and Souths.  

This brought us to the last 3 games of the regular season, where we were to play the top 2 
teams, Uni and Manly as well as the fast finishing Gordon. The games against Uni and Manly 
again showed us we could be competitive with any team in the competition; however it also 
showed us that if we didn’t play for the full 80 minutes, we would find ourselves on the wrong side 
of the score line.  

By the end of the regular season, we had finished fifth and knew that if we played to our potential 
we were capable causing some upsets in the Semi-Finals. Our first semi was against Easts. We 
started on fire scoring 2 quick tries to go out to a 15-0 lead after only 20 minutes. As ever, some 
of our decision-making under pressure proved costly, allowing Easts to score 2 late tries in the 
first half. The second half belonged to Easts and they outscored us 2 tries to nil but it was the 
goal kicking of Charlie Wakim which kept us in touch and finally got us over the line 24-22.  

This set us up with a mouth-watering chance to knock off Sydney Uni to reach the Grand Final. 
We were firmly painted as the underdog, which is exactly what we wanted, and we knew from 
previous experience that if we played for the full 80 minutes, took our opportunities and 
minimised our mistakes that we’d be in with a very good chance.  
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The game couldn’t have started better for us with a charge down try from the kick-off to Ben 
Selby. This put us up 8-0 until the Uni juggernaut clicked into gear. Uni scored 2 tries late in the 
first half to make the half time score 17-13 to Uni. We knew we had to maintain our concentration 
for the full game to have any chance and this is exactly what we did. We out scored Uni 2 tries to 
1 in the second half and with only seconds to go on the clock were leading 27-24. We knew what 
we needed to do, maintain possession and kick the ball out, but one mistake led to a Uni turnover 
and they took the ball up field 40 metres where we were penalised. Uni kicked a 45m goal to 
draw the game 2 minutes after full time. The rest, as they say, is history with Uni scoring 3 tries to 
2 in extra time to take the game away from us. Although it was a devastating loss, the coaches 
and spectators couldn’t have been prouder of the performance. The most pleasing aspect is that 
17 players of the match day 22 are still eligible to play Colts again in 2012.  

This nucleus of players now know what’s required both mentally and physically to be competitive 
in this competition and this should be a driving force for us moving ahead.  

From a coach’s point of view it was great to see so many players develop their skills and 
understanding of the game as the year progressed. In the forwards, Tom Connor, Zeb Holmes-
Baer, Ben Selby and Will Munro all had fantastic seasons. While in the backs Liam Walker, Mark 
Bannon, Dan Fleming, Terence Hepetema all had strong seasons. It was unfortunate to lose 
Charlie Wakim, Rob Bartlett and Matt Meoli for long periods of the season through injury, 
although both Charlie and Matt made successful comebacks at the back end of the year.  

Congratulations to Tom Connor for being selected to play for the Australian U19 Academy to play 
England schools and also for making his first Grade debut vs Manly.  

To all the players who are moving up to Grade next year, good luck. Finally, to all the players who 
are returning to play Colts again in 2012, you had a good 2011 season but you certainly haven’t 
achieved your potential! 

Thanks to: 

 All the players who pulled on the myrtle green to play in Firsts Colts this year. 

 Keith and Radzi for all the work they do behind the scenes to ensure that all the players and 
 coaches have to worry about is the game. 

 Physiotherapists Nicole and Stu for all your hard work getting the players onto the field. 

 Pene for all his technical work at the set piece. 

Jayson whose tireless work both as Colts co-ordinator and First Grade coach led to much of the 
on-field success achieved not only by first Grade Colts but also by Randwick Colts as a whole. 

Best & Fairest – Will Munro 

Colts Player of the Year – Tom Connor 

 

Jon Delaney 

Coach 
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First Grade Colts Season Results 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Warringah W 46-11 W 26-20 

Parramatta W 76-17 W 34-7 

Eastwood W 21-10  L 20-21 

Eastern suburbs W 24-23 L 25-38 

West Harbour W 23-7 L 20-25 

Penrith Walkover 28-0 Walkover 28-0 

Northern suburbs W 44-12 W 44-11 

Southern Districts W 15-7 W 32-25 

Sydney University L 20-40 L 10-33 

Gordon W25-22 L 41-48 

Manly L 15-46 L 32-52 

Elimination Semi Final 

Eastern Suburbs W 24-22   

Preliminary Final   

Sydney University L 39-46   

   

Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries^ 102 78 

Goals^ 56 45 

P/F Goals 30 21 

Points 712 543 

^includes 8 walkover tries and goals and 3 penalty tries 

   

Game Details  

Played 24  

Won 13  

Drawn 0  

Walkover 2  

Lost 9  

Bonus Points 15  

Points For 712*  

Points Against 543  

* includes 56 walkover points and 3 penalty tries  

   

42 players appeared in First Grade Colts  

Most appearances: Mark bannon (22), Daniel Fleming (22) 

Leading try scorer: Tom Connor (8), Charlie Wakim (8) 

Leading points scorer: Charlie Wakim (105)  

Best and Fairest: Will Munro  
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Second Grade Colts Report 
 

The 2011 season was a season of “almost” and “what if”. The team in 2011 suffered several tight 
losses throughout the year of seven points or less, a frustrating 'what if' scenario springs to mind 
had the tight losses been wins.  But we saw players continued to improve from game to game 
and showed in the last home game to Manly at Coogee Oval to send senior Colts out on a high.  

Ben Meyers and I only took over coaching half way in the season. I must thank Michael Michaels 
and the Russian spy Vladimir Savovski for all their work with the team at the start of the season.  

It was great to see at the back end of the season a lot of players take the challenge of getting 
back to what rugby is all about FUN and the Randwick Style of RUNNING RUGBY. The legends 
of our GREAT Club would have loved to see what we did to some teams by running. This was 
the first and second option and even the third with the last, and very last option, was to kick.  

I would like to thank the boys who skippered the side over this season with BJ Frost, Chris 
“Gooch” Miller, Ethan “Princess” Turnbull, last but not one to miss is the GLUE Beau Brummell. 
All of the boys did a great job in leading by example. 

The team "Try of the Year" is a try that would make the Ella family stand up and clap. Deep in our 
22 with a quick lineout and we were away with the dancing feet on Zane “Bra" Bashford beating 5 
players from the team, chip and chase to beat another 3 players just over halfway the a long pass 
to the DOUBLE AA to beat two guys and then hit a slow moving Mides inside to going over the 
line for a great team try. 

I wish all the boys going on to Grade all the best and to step up and take on the challenge and 
take to Grade with the rip and don’t give up style as that what it takes to be a Grade player and 
not to drop the ball if things don’t go your way. The only way to make it in Grade is the way you 
finished the season. To the players coming back I look forward to having you back and let’s finish 
what was started at the back end of this season. 

A rugby club cannot work without people like Keith Holmes, Big Radzs and Viv Weatherill; all 
three did an outstanding job, not just in the manager role but in the time they put in away from the 
training nights and game days. Our Club would be lost without them. Thanks to the Legend team 
in Third Grade Colts coaching staff for all your help.  Jayson, Penny and JD, “thank you” guys for 
your help and asking me to be involved. Ben” punching above your weight” Meyers - I could not 
have asked for a better mate to help me out with this. Thank you for everything. Last, but he must 
not be missed, I would like to thank Craig Morrison our Club Coach – we need more people like 
him. Thank you for all your help and giving up your time for me whenever I needed it.  

Congratulations to Tim Murray who was awarded Best and Fairest in 2011 for Seconds. 

Well done Seconds 

Nathan McMahon 
Coach  
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Second Grade  Colts Season Results 

   

  Round 1 Round 2 

Warringah W 56-0 W 28-10 

Parramatta W 48-5 W 26-10 

Eastwood L 0-7 L 17-55  

Eastern suburbs L 14-36 L 15-21 

West Harbour L 10-11 L 15-26 

Penrith Walkover 28-0 Walkover 28-0 

Northern suburbs L 12-18 L 17-21 

Southern Districts W 23-5 W 38-7 

Sydney University L 24-48 L 0-43 

Gordon L 17-22 L 32-45 

Manly L 12-35 W 33-12 

   

Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries^ 75 65 

Goals^ 44 38 

P/F Goals 10 12 

Points 493 437 

^ Includes 8 walkover tries and goals  

   

Game Details  

Played 22  

Won 7  

Drawn 0  

Walkover 2  

Lost 13  

Bonus Points 15  

Points For 493*  

Points Against 437  

*includes 56 walkover points   

   

59 players appeared in Second Grade Colts  

   

Most appearances: Alex Mides (17), Jarrod O'Hara (17) 

Leading try scorer: Tom Windeatt (9)  

Leading points scorer: Alex Golledge (59)  

Best and Fairest: Tim Murray  
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Third Grade Colts Report 

 

The 2011 year was to be one of the unknown. New coaches installed, new players signed up 
and a new man at the helm overseeing all. After a very industrious pre-season with a pool of 40 
players we ended up with a final squad by round 18.The following players which were part of a 
wonderfully talented group of men: 

Hagan Butler, Simon Galluzo, Luke Brbot, Michael Celona, Alex Epa Iosefa, Sam Taylor(capt), 
Stuart Mackenzie, Phillip South, Dean Murdoch, Pat Brummell, Troy Jeffs, John Weatherall, 
Brayden Gibney(VC), Evan von Zurmuehlen, Jackson Raymond, Leo Gordon, Pat Koutsoukis, 
Fawzi Hijazi, Max Kite, Liam Moore, Justin Chadwick, Harry Rampage, Felix Ferrandis, Aron 
Rutter, Lewis Raymond, Earl Yandell, Tom Stirling. 

Best and Fairest Awards 2011 

Alex Epa Iosefa and Stuart Mackenzie. 

Coaching Panel 

Emanuel (Manny) Kaissis, Tony (Tones) Palmier and Briant (Bri) Kareroa. 

They came from far and wide and even some locally to become Colts, to wear the famous myrtle 
green and achieved beyond their wildest dreams. The boys scalped some heavy weights, 
University, West Harbour, Easts and Eastwood, only Manly escaped. The players put Third Colts 
back on the map to the dismay of our opponents. We found our way towards second spot by end 
of round 22. We developed a winning behaviour and attitude which allowed us to win 16 games 
and finishing undefeated in the second half the competition. 

Wow! What a year 2011. One which these boys will remember well into their lives over a few 
quiet ones, “remember the day when we played? And you…?” because that’s what it really is all 
about. 

The coaches Manny and Tones on debut, Briant ”hey bro got a position for me?” who just rocked 
in off Moverly Road, and anonymous.  The coaches were totally committed, working in the best 
interests of the players and team. 

Special thanks for her support and confidence to Nicole (great strapping Nic), Keith Holmes 
(manager), Michael Radziowsky (liaison manager) and our fearless leader Jayson Brewer. 

 
Manny Kaissus, Tones Palmier and  
Bri Kareroa 

Coaches 
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Third Grade Colts Season Results 

   

  Round 1 Round 2 

Warringah Walkover 28-0 W 26-5 

Parramatta Walkover 28-0 Walkover 28-0 

Eastwood L  0 -17 W 18-15 

Eastern suburbs L 3-5 W 22-14 

West Harbour L 10-14 W 37-12 

Penrith W 19-17 W 34-19 

Northern suburbs W 17-5 W 38-17 

Southern Districts W55-7 W 52-0 

Sydney University D 14-14 W 17-7 

Gordon W 43-0 W 21-20 

Manly L 12-19 D 24-24 

Preliminary Final     

Manly L 5-22   

   

Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries^ 84 40 

Goals^ 55 22 

P/F Goals 7 3 

Points 551 253 

^ includes 12 walkover tries and goals   

   

Game Details  

Played 23  

Won 13  

Drawn 2  

Walkover 3  

Lost 5  

Bonus Points 14  

Points For 551*  

Points Against 253  

* includes 84 walkover points  

   

62 players appeared in Third Grade Colts  

   

Most appearances: Leo Gordon (19), Phillip South (19), Sam Taylor (19) 

Leading try scorer: Jackson Raymond (8), Sam Taylor (8) 

Leading points scorer: Braydon Gibney (74)  

Best and Fairest: Alex Iosefa, Stuart McKenzie 
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Life Members Association Report  
 

2011 Rugby Season 

The 2011 Rugby season did not witness the achievements of the Club in 2010. Suffice to say, to 
have all the Grade sides and the Colts First Grade and Third Grade participate in the major 
premiership series was a significant effort and one of which the Club should be quietly proud. 
The Life Members Association compliments all the players, coaching staff, team managers, on 
field support staff, medical assistants, administrators, the Rugby Council and other volunteers 
who all contribute to the well-being and continued development of our historic Club. 

New Life Members 

At the Annual General Meeting held in February 2011, Club members elected as Life Members 
of the Club, Warwick Wheeler and Andrew James. Both Warwick and Andrew have made over a 
long period an important contribution to the success of the Club. The Life Members Association 
congratulates both men on their election. The Club has currently twenty three (23) Life Members. 

Association Activities 

During 2011 the Association held meetings on 29 January, 20 May, 19 August and 16 
December. Following each of these meetings a report was provided to the Rugby Council and 
from time to time recommendations were made to the Rugby Council by the Association. 

 

Life Members, Bob Outterside, Bob Dwyer, John Maxwell and deceased Life Members Wally 
Meagher and Keith Windon were inducted into the Randwick Rugby Hall of Fame at the Hall of 
Fame lunch held on 21 July 2011. The Life Members Association salutes all the inductees. 

Life Members and Randwick luminaries, Sir Nicholas Shehadie and Bob Dwyer were honoured 
at the 2011 International Rugby Board’s Annual Awards Function with induction into the IRB Hall 
of Fame. Sir Nicholas, former Wallabies Captain, was recognised for his contribution to the game 
and particularly for being instrumental in the creation of the Rugby World Cup in 1987. Bob 
Dwyer was recognised as the 1991 Rugby World Cup Winning Coach. 

The President, Anthony Bell and the Rugby Council invited Life Members to attend Coogee Oval 
on Saturday 27 August 2011 for the presentation of Life Members medallions. The presentation 
of medallions was made by the Honourable Peter Garrett, Minister for Schools, Education, Early 
Childhood and Youth. Sixteen Life Members received the awards in person. Seven Life 
Members were unable to attend the presentation; their medallions were received on their behalf 
by an appointed representative. In addition, medallions were presented to members of the 
families of deceased Life Members elected after 1970, Laurie Argue, Jack Cotis, Don Furness, 
Jack Hovey, John McCulloch, Ron Meagher, Bill Outterside, Ham Stephen, Col and Keith 
Windon. 

The Life Members Association wishes to record their appreciation and congratulations to the 
Rugby Council, Club Archivist/Historian Bob Outterside and General Manager, Tony Lewis for 
their efforts and support in the Life Members medallions project. 
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Conclusion 

Life members continue to be very proud members of the Club. The Association has the welfare 
and betterment of the Club a priority. The Association is committed to assist and advise the 
Rugby Council if and when required. The Association also provides an opportunity for Life 
Members to meet and mix socially. 

The Life Members once again extend to the Rugby Council appreciation for the support, 
recognition and assistance the Association receives from the Council. 

 

Peter Court 
Chairman Life Members Association 
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Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Elected Life Members 
 

Life Members Elected Prior to 1947 
HW Baker*  1931    MM Atkins*   1941 
JM Dunningham* 1931    CH Towers*   1942               
NE Eglese*  1931    CR Davidson*   1942 
LB Callaghan*  1932    JRL Palfreyman*   1945 
JA Rigney*  1932    EK Dobbs*   1945 
FW Meagher*  1937          
 

Life Members Elected 1947-1969 
JF Lane*  1950    FC Thornley*   1958 
V Ford*  1951    HJC Kahl*    1961 
W Rowney*  1958    J O’Shea*    1965 
 

Life Members Elected 1970-1979 
KS Windon*  1970    JJ Hovey*    1975 
H Stephen*  1974    R Outterside   1976 
DC Furness*  1975    RW Meagher*   1979 
 

Life Members Elected 1980-2011  
JM McCulloch* 1982    KAP Phibbs   1998 
RSF Dwyer  1983    Sir Nicholas Shehadie 1998 
JL Sayle  1985    LW Argue*   2001 
PK Court  1986    JB Casamento   2001 
IM Kennedy  1989    TW Reid    2001 
PM Willcox  1991    JR Murray    2005 
JM Maxwell  1993    RJ Willey    2005 
J Cotis*  1994    G Karras    2007 
AA Gaffney  1994    P Antoniades   2008 
WT Outterside* 1994    TG Evans                      2008 
DE Henry  1997    DC Long    2010 
W Hope  1997    WA Wheeler   2011 
V Singer  1997    AD James    2011    
CJ Windon*  1997     
 
* Denotes Deceased Life Members         
 

Current Life Members 
R Outterside  1976    Sir Nicholas Shehadie 1998 
RSF Dwyer 1983    JB Casamento   2001  
JL Sayle  1985    TW Reid    2001       
PK Court  1986    JR Murray    2005 
IM Kennedy  1989    RJ Willey    2005 
PM Willcox  1991    G Karras    2007 
JM Maxwell  1993    P Antoniades   2008 
AA Gaffney  1994    TG Evans    2008 
DE Henry  1997    DC Long    2010 
W Hope  1997    WA Wheeler   2011  
V Singer  1997    AD James    2011  
KAP Phibbs  1998     
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Junior Development Report  

  
At the start of the season I sat down with Pat O'Shea, the Randwick Rugby Junior Representative 
Co-coordinator, to revamp the Randwick Junior representative program. The points raised and 
implemented were: 

 Players invited to trial and asked to register and nominate their preferred playing positions. 

 All players invited to a two-hour pre-trial training session in their own age group. Each  
 session included a scrum session by Jeff Sayle. 

 Trial teams selected prior to the trial so that when a player arrived at the trial he was given a 
 jumper to wear for the day (John Smith 6 red, Bill Jones yellow 12 etc). 

 The teams selected by ex-Randwick Grade players as well as the coaches from the  
 respective teams. 

By bringing in this policy the selection process was transparent and all players were given equal 
time in the positions they nominated for. 

Each team had at least 2 internal trials. 

We limited the number of trials against other Districts to one trial, a three way trial between 
Randwick, Southern Districts & Warringah two weeks before the State Championships. We felt 
the majority of players were playing too much football. It was decided to up-skill the players with 
regard to catching, passing, defence, scrummaging at training. 

Each team was asked to nominate 2 goal kickers for 2 coaching sessions with David Knox. The 
under 12 kickers kicked 68% during their tournament including 6 out of 6 in the final. 

State Championship Results 

 U10 Randwick had 2 teams in the Development Tournament (no finals played although 
 some districts had A & B teams Randwick had two even teams. Results Randwick won 5 
 drew 1 and had 2 narrow losses. 

 U11 Randwick won 5 pool games and was defeated by Manly 14 - 7 in the Semi Final. 
 Manly went on to win the final. 

 U12 Randwick defeated Norths 42 - 0 in the Final to record back to back titles having won 
 the U11 in 2010. 

 U13 Randwick won 2 lost 1 to finish 2nd in their pool. 

 U14 Randwick finished 2nd in their pool. 

U15 and U16 both performed well considering they are club teams up against Districts which can 
choose their team from a number of Village Clubs. This needs to be addressed in the future in 
regard to keeping our players from the Junior Bunnies (more will be written about this later in the 
report). 

School Tournaments 
Two tournaments were held in 2011. 

 Year 3 - 4 tournament 23 teams entered 

 Year 5 - 6 tournament 16 teams entered. 

65 training sessions were held in the lead up to the tournaments. 
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Juniors 
 Mini-Rugby at Nagle continues to grow. 
 The Mini-Rugby carnival was once again a success with a lot of teams entering from other 

 Districts (Lindy Beynon doing a great job running the day)  
 The inaugural pre-season 7s tournament attracted a lot of new players from outside our  

 village clubs ( Lindy and Simon Poidevin the driving force behind the tournament) 
 The standard of football played by our Village Clubs during the season was exceptional  

 especially the U13 final between South Coogee and Clovelly and the U12 final between 
 South Coogee and Coogee White which was played before the Randwick - Gordon game on 
 Ladies Day; a great incentive by Tony Lewis to promote our Juniors. 

 During the season I did a lot of guest coaching at the Village Clubs and was impressed with 
 the standard of coaching. 

 To the Presidents of the Village Clubs, thanks to your committees for the time and energy 
 that you have put in during the season. 

 To the referees, thanks for contribution to the season especially to the young kids  
 who referee at Nagle each week running around with the Minis. 

 To Scott Heathwood and Steve Vanderdonk as President and Secretary. Not an easy job to 
 keep all the shareholders happy but you did your best and from my point it was terrific the 
 way you handled any problem that arose. 

If Randwick is going to be a force in the State championships after the age of 12 we are  
going to have to lift our game to fight off the challenge from the Souths Juniors Bunnies Program. 
This is an achievable goal. All we need to do is work together as a Club. By establishing a 
representative pathway starting with a trip away for players when they reach the U13s followed 
b y  a  J u n i o r  t a l e n t  s q u a d  w h i c h  w i l l  f l o w  o n t o  C o l t s . 
In closing I would like to thank Jon Collins for his foresight in supporting the Randwick Junior 
program. 

  
Jim Dubos 
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Juniors Report  

 

The operation of Randwick Junior Rugby encompasses all our village clubs and the 
representative program, with both areas enjoying a tremendously successful season in 2011. 
Across the Coogee, Clovelly, Eastgardens, Eora Warriors and South Coogee clubs almost 800 
boys played rugby every weekend. 

That equated to 35 Randwick teams in our minis competition for under 6-9 years olds held at 
Nagle Park each Saturday morning in conjunction with the Easts clubs. A further 23 teams 
participated in the junior age groups from Under 10-16s - playing in SJRU competitions on Friday 
night, Saturday afternoons and Sundays. 

Against extremely tough opponents in a Sydney wide competition, Premierships were won by 
Coogee in the Under 16s and Under 14s and South Coogee in Under 12s and 13s. The highlight 
for many was the Under 12s Grand Final played between South Coogee and Coogee on the 
hallowed turf at Coogee Oval prior to first grade against Gordon. It showcased junior rugby at its 
finest and the boys thrilled the big crowd. We thank the Senior Club and Gordon for promoting 
this fabulous development opportunity. We also appreciate the Senior Club’s on-going generosity 
in allowing our clubs to run the Canteen/BBQs at Coogee Oval. 

However at the end of the day it is the village clubs and their committees that are the lifeblood of 
junior rugby. Their hours of commitment and dedication are the driving force to get kids and 
parents into the game. The stark reality is they do so with little help and at times it’s a very 
thankless task. The cost to run junior clubs continues to soar and it requires ever more elbow 
grease and entrepreneurial ingenuity to keep the whole circus afloat. 

To the club presidents Andrew Dyster (Clovelly), Andrew Harding (Coogee), Peter Dunn 
(Eastgardens/Maroubra) and Kathy Davies (South Coogee) please know that your efforts are 
admired greatly and appreciated. That filters down to all the volunteers at each club – from 
passionate coaches, trainers and managers; to those parents that simply turned a snag on the 
BBQ to raise a quid or ran the touch line. 

There are no games without referees and again they did a superb job, despite enduring both 
difficult circumstances and people who should know better. However each week at Nagle Park 
we had a full complement of minis refs on deck so thanks to Joel Ninyo and his group of young 
men and women. 

In terms of the representative program 145 boys were selected to don the myrtle green at the 
State Championships, where we fielded 8 teams from Under 10-16s. Again the mighty Under 12s 
won consecutive State Crowns, but we were equally as proud of the efforts of all our teams who 
honoured the honour against the best players in the state. We thank Jim Dubos for his drive in 
running the rep program as well as all the coaches, managers, selectors and parents for their 
support. 

We also celebrated when local legends Phil Elkington (Coogee) and Bob Devine (Referees) were 
inducted into the Junior Hall of Fame at the gala Hilton lunch for their long term devotion to rugby 
in our area. 
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I would like to pay tribute to the outgoing Juniors Committee of Scott Heathwood, Steve Van Der 
Donk, Pat O’Shea and Lindy Benyon for their major contribution to the district over the past two 
years. This included re-engineering of the rep program, the introduction of a 7s tournament and a 
successful return of the Minis Gala Day. It’s not easy keeping all stakeholders happy at district 
level but this committee led by Scott had considerable equity in all of the achievements listed 
above and deserves our gratitude. 

 

A new committee has stepped up to the plate in 2012 and one of our objectives is to work more 
closely with the Senior Club to ensure the development of rugby against increasingly stiff 
opposition from other codes in our district. I think everyone now clearly understands that the 
pathway to colts and grade and the long term future success of Randwick Rugby begins at Nagle 
Park in the Under 6s. 

 

I can’t wait to see the boys back on the field and parents enjoying a brew at the rugga - so on 
behalf of the juniors I wish all at Randwick Rugby success in 2012. 

 

Up The Wicks! 

 

 

Mark Harrison 

President 

Randwick District Junior Rugby Union Football Club 
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Treasurers Report 

The 2011 financial year was once again one that was not only a successful one for the Club on 
the field but was it was also a financially strong year in what can only be described as a tough 
economic climate.   The Year was not without it challenges however the club has been able to 
post a small loss of only $17,316 (A Profit of $9,609 after Extraordinary Items). 

Once again the Club was able to minimise its dependency on the Randwick Rugby Foundation 
Limited (“RRFL”) and only called on $100,000 of the $230,000 support pledged for the year. 

This result has been achieved in an environment of continued increases in operating costs 
amongst all aspects of rugby operations.   

The strong financial result was achieved by strong financial management under the guidance of 
Tony Lewis. 

I wish to thank Tony Lewis our General Manager for his efforts in managing costs and focusing 
on revenue around marketing and sponsorship.  I also wish to thank Brian Chalmers for his 
efforts in managing the accounts of the football club.  I also thank Jeff Sayle in his role as 
president of the licensed club and Peter Sweeney as the President of the Foundation for their 
support and efforts in ensuring an ongoing and strong relationship between the entities in the 
Randwick Family 

The Budget for 2012 demonstrates that many challenges remain in the finances of Sydney 
Premier Grade Rugby side.  We again have faced challenges in sponsorship for 2012 loosing a 
number of key sponsors but the council are working hard to replace those and ensure the Club is 
on a stable financial footing moving forward.   

 We also face a change in the structure and support from the SRU which we are working to 
further understand.  The budget for 2012 demonstrates the Club will be dependent on further 
support via grants from the RRFL.   The Foundation Board has been made aware of this request. 

The Council and the Club are dependent on the continued support of our sponsors and the efforts 
of those many Randwick loyal volunteers and supporters that provide their time and energy week 
in and week out to ensure the operations and workings of the club continue on a day to day 
basis.  From coaches and managers to gate keepers, medical staff, representative players, bar 
tenders, time keepers, ground announcers, statisticians and ball boys to the supporters who turn 
up each week along with the sponsors and the many other volunteers I wish to thank you all for 
your extremely valuable time and financial support in the past and look forward to it again in 
2012. 

Quentin Olde 

Honorary Treasurer 
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2011 Financial Reports 

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC 

ABN: 75 787 573 633 

 

Income and Expenditure Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2011 

     

 Note 2011  2010 

  $  $ 

Income  

Sponsorship 2 497,930  490,309 

N S W RU - Grant  83,845  84,000 

Revenue - Coogee Oval  114,959  90,998 

Player Subscriptions  32,942  9,902 

Fundraising Functions  76,485  80,815 

Merchandise Revenue  5,443  - 

Interest Received  2,573  636 

Other income 3 18,823  18,513 

Total Income  833,000  775,173 

     

Expenses  

Coogee Oval   4 77,739  85,371 

Latham Park 5 16,264  43,701 

Player Operation Costs 6 304,732  249,327 

Coaching Costs  7 194,040  112,559 

Marketing - Direct 8 6,185  28,269 

Marketing - Sponsorship Servicing 9 16,799  22,866 

Sponsorship Contra Costs 10 77,201  84,000 

Administration Expenses 11 138,152  131,056 

Depreciation  12 18,704  20,261 

Total Expenses  849,816  780,639 

     

Operating Surplus/(Loss) Before Extraordinary Items  (17,316)  (5,466) 

    - 

Credit from Prior Year Expense 19 26,925  - 

Asset Impairment Charge  20 -  (12,932) 

     

9,609  (18,398) Operating Profit/(Loss) after Extraordinary Items  

     

Retained Funds - Opening  55,429  73,827 

     

Surplus Available for Appropriation  9,609  (18,398) 

     

Retained Funds at End of Year  65,038  55,429 



Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc. 2011 Annual Report 

52 

 

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC 

ABN: 75 787 573 633 

 

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2011 

          

  NOTE 2011   2010 

  $  $ 

Current Assets      

Cash 13 101,633   55,366 

Trade and Other Debtors 14 32,279   16,000 

Prepayments   1,887   3,612 

GST Paid   7,897   4,065 

Total Current Assets   143,696   79,043 

          

Non-Current Assets         

Property, Plant and Equipment 15 42,614   61,318 

Total Non-Current Assets   42,614   61,318 

        

Total Assets   186,310   140,361 

         

Current Liabilities         

Payables  16 30,667   46,615 

GST on supplies   13,516   6,278 

Provisions  17 66,683   26,633 

        

Total Current Liabilities   110,886   79,527 

        

Total Liabilities   110,866   79,527 

        

Net Assets   75,444   60,834 

          

Equity         

Accumulated Funds   65.038   55,429 

Reserves 18 10,406   5,405 

        

Total Equity   75,444   60,834 
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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC 

ABN: 75 787 573 633 

 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2011 

    

 Retained Earnings Reserves Total 

 $ $ $ 

    

Balance as at 31st December 2009 73,827 47,686 121,513 

Profit/Transfers (18,398) (42,281) (60,679) 

Balance as at 31st December 2010 55,429 5,405 60,834 

Profit/Transfers 9,609 5,001 14,610 

Balance as at 31st December 2011 65,038 10,406 75,444 

 

 

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2011 

    

 2011  2010 

 $  $ 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities  

Cash Receipts From Operations 898,029  911,856 

Cash Payments in the Course of Operations 856,763  910,496 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 41,266  1,387 

    

Cash Flows from Investing Activities  

Payments for Property Plant Equipment  -  (2540) 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities -  (2540) 

    

Cash Flows from Financing Activities  

Provisions and Reserves 5,001  (42,281) 

Repayment of Loan -  59,707 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 5,001  17,426 

    

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash Held 46,267  16,273 

    

Cash at the Beginning of the Year 55,366  39,093 

    

Cash at the End of the Year 101,633  55,366 
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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC 

ABN: 75 787 573 633 

 

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows    

 2011  2010 

 $  $ 

Note 1 - Reconciliation of Cash  

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statements of cash flows is reconciled  to the related 
item in the statement of financial position as follows:  

Cash in Hand -  - 

Bank - Seniors 96,829  50,562 

Cash Management  442  442 

Macquarie Bank 2,505  2,505 

RDRUFC Players Account 1,858  1,858 

Total Cash 101,633  55,366 

 

Note 2 - Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operations with Surplus from Ordinary Activities  

Surplus from  Ordinary Activities 9,609  (5,466) 

Non-cash Flows in Surplus from Ordinary Activities:    

Depreciation and Impairment Charge 18,704  33,183 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:    

(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors  (16,279)  32,966 

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables   (15,948)  (52,204) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 1,725  (8,874) 

Increase/(Decrease) in GST Payable 3,405  4,455 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  40,050  (2,673) 

Cash Flows from Operations 41,266  1,387 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2011 

 

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 

This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting 
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales.  

The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity. The financial report has been 
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Association Incorporation Act New South Wales and the 
following Australian Accounting Standards:  

AAS 5 : Materiality  

AAS 8: Events Occurring After Reporting date  

No other applicable Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations or other authoritative pro-
nouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board have been applied. 
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The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historic costs and does not take 
into account changing money values, or except where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current 
assets. 

 

The following material accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise 
stated, have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report. 

 

(a) Income Tax 

The Association is a tax exempt body 

 

(b) Fixed Assets 

Plant & Equipment are measured on the cost basis. The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed 
annually by the Association to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from those assets. 

 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets to the associa-
tion commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. 

 

(c) Investments 

Non-current investments are measured on the cost basis. 

 

The carrying amount of investments is reviewed annually by the Committee to ensure it is not in excess of 
the recoverable amount of these investments. The recoverable amount is assessed from the quoted market 
value for shares in listed companies, if applicable, or such other criteria as determined by the Committee. 

 

(d) Employee Entitlements 

Provision is made for the Associations liability for employee entitlements arising from services rendered by 
employees to balance date. Employee entitlements expected to be settled within one year together with enti-
tlements arising from wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave which will be settled after one year, 
have been measured at their nominal amount. Other employee entitlements payable later than one year have 
been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those entitlements. 

 

Contributions are made by the Association to an employee superannuation fund and are charged as expens-
es when incurred. 

(e) Cash 

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand, at banks or on deposit. 

 

(f) Revenue 

Revenue from the receipt of grants is recognised by the stipulated dates laid down by the supplier of the 
funds; revenue from the supply of services is taken into account when the service is undertaken; revenue 
from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods to customers. 

 

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the 
financial assets. 

 

Dividend revenue is recognised when the association has established that it has a right to receive a dividend. 
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(g) Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the GST is recog-
nised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense. Receivables and 
payables in the Statement of Financial Position are shown inclusive of GST. 

    

 2011  2010 

 $  $ 

NOTE 2 - Sponsorship  

Sponsorship Cash 320,729  291,309 

Randwick Rugby Club Grant 100,000  115,000 

Contra Sponsorship 77,201  84,000 

Total Sponsorship 497,930  490,309 

 

NOTE 3- Other Income  

Miscellaneous 16,673  13,513 

Donations 1,650  5,000 

Total Other Income 18,323  18,513 

 

NOTE 4- Coogee Oval  

Rental 24,372  11,843 

Match Day Costs 48,972  64,305 

Program Costs 4,396  9,223 

Total  Coogee Oval 77,739  85,371 

 

NOTE 5- Latham Park  

Rental 11,453  29,228 

Repairs & Mtce - Ground 4,810  7,665 

Electricity -  6,056 

Total Latham Park  16,264  43,701 
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NOTE 6 - Player Operation Costs  

Player Expenses 124,258  132,676 

Footballs & Equipment 4,402  2,050 

Gymnasium Fees -  14,364 

Insurance 14,706  12,264 

Laundry 6,557  5,060 

Medical Fees - Doctors/Physio 12,890  14,964 

Medical Supplies -  5,089 

Medical Tape 10,322  11,598 

Player Rewards 3,240  1,113 

Travel and Accomodation 30,751  - 

Refreshments 3,474  5,940 

Sundries 2,996  6,594 

Uniforms 59,178  24,254 

Tournament Expenses 31,958  13,791 

Total Player Operation Costs 304,732  249,757 

NOTE 7- Coaching   

Motor Vehicle Expenses  6,462  1,725 

Salaries  90,877  65,697 

Superannuation  9,035  2,703 

Leave Provision 6,912  - 

Schools & Junior Clubs  26,516  5,000 

Telephone  2,784  2,468 

Senior Coaching 51454  34,567 

Total Coaching Costs 194,040  112,559 

    

NOTE 8- Marketing Costs  

Consultants Fees    11,220 

Functions  4,985  9,379 

Salaries -  5,222 

Superannuation -  456 

Promotions 1,200  1,991 

Total Marketing Costs 6,185  28,269 

    

NOTE 9 - Sponsorship Servicing Expenses  

Functions Expenses  2,183  3,003 

Match Day Expenses  -  10,138 

Sundry Expenses  1,538  3,836 

Tickets  13,077  8,689 

Total Sponsorship Servicing Exp 16,799  25,666 
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 2011  2010 

 $  $ 

NOTE  10 - Contra Sponsorship Expenses 

Contra Sponsorship Expenses 77,201  84,000 

 

NOTE 11 - Administration Expenses  

Advertising -  1,397 

Affiliation Fees NSWRU 1,141  - 

AGM Expenses -  959 

Audit Fees 1,500  2,500 

Bank Fees 2,251  3,397 

Computer Expenses 2,087  1,045 

Donations -  3,009 

Employment Costs 97,477  98,595 

Insurances  10,632  8,547 

Leave Provisions 6,912  537 

Motor Vehicle Expenses 6,255  2,719 

Postage & Couriers 65  47 

Printing & Stationery 2,406  2,967 

Telephone 2,162  2,852 

General Expenses 5,264  3,568 

Total Administration Expenses 138,152  131,056 

 

NOTE 12 Deprecation 

Latham Park 425  425 

General Depreciation 18,279  19,836 

Total Depreciation 18,704  20,261 

 

NOTE 13- Cash  

Cash in Hand   - 

Bank- Seniors 90,829  50,562 

Cash Management  442  442 

Macquarie Bank  2,.505  2,505 

RDRUFC Players Account 1,858  1,858 

Total Cash 101,633  55,366 

    

NOTE 14 - Trade Debtors and Other Debtors 

Trade Debtors 18,000  16,000 

Loan to RRCL 14,279  - 

Total Trade and Other Debtors 32,729  16,000 
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 2011  2010 

 $  $ 

NOTE 15- Property Plant and Equipment 

    

First Aid Room at Cost 8,094  8,519 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation (425)  (425) 

Total First Aid Room 7,669  8,094 

    

    

Plant & Equipment - at Cost 37,110  37,110 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation (21,410)  (20,685) 

Total Plant & Equipment 15,700  16,425 

    

Office Equipment - at Cost 32,437  32,437 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation -31,349  (27,968) 

Total Office Equipment 1,087  4,469 

    

Kitchen Fittings at cost 5506  5,506 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation (5506)  (5,363) 

Total Kitchen Fittings -  143 

    

Furniture & Fittings - at Cost 18,499  18,499 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation (18,499)  (18,252) 

Total Furniture & Fittings -  247 

    

Gymnasium Equipment at Cost 19,196  19,196 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation (16,269)  (14,258) 

Total Gymnasium Equipment 2,927  4,939 

    

Motor Vehicles at cost 28,604  28,604 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation (22,125)  (15,128) 

Total Motor Vehicles 6,479  13,477 

    

Gym Renovation at Cost 16,612  16,612 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation (10,521)  (7,199) 

Total Gym Renovation 6,091  9,414 

    

Sponsors Stand at Cost 7,254  7,254 

Less Prov'n for Depreciation (4,594)  (3,143) 

Total Sponsors Stand 2,660  4,111 

    

Total Plant and Equipment 42,614  61,318 
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 2011  2010 

 $  $ 

NOTE 16—Payables 

Trade Creditors 13,932  31,247 

Accrued Expenses -  2,585 

Payg Withholding Tax 16,712  10,196 

Superannuation Payable 23  2,586 

Total Payables 30,667  46,615 

 

NOTE 17 - Provisions  

Year End Provisions 22,000  - 

Audit Fees 2,350  2,500 

Revenue in Advance -  22,903 

Unpaid Expenses 12,500  - 

Unearned Revenue 14,779  - 

Annual Leave 15,054  1,230 

Total Provisions 66,683  26,663 

 

NOTE 18 -  Reserves  

    

Touring Fund Reserve    

Opening Balance   12,588 

Transfers In   - 

Total Transfers Out   12,588 

Closing Balance   - 

    

Injured Players Reserve    

Opening Balance   14,542 

Transfers Out   14,542 

Closing Balance   - 

    

Equip Maintenance Reserve    

Opening Balance   4,043 

Transfers Out   4,043 

Closing Balance   - 
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Future Development Fund    

Opening Balance -  14,718 

Transfers In -  - 

Total Transfers out -  14,718 

Closing Balance -  - 

    

Players Committee Touring 

Fund    

Opening Balance 1,858  - 

Nett Income/ Expenditure -  1,858 

Closing Balance 1,858  1,858 

    

Colts Academy    

Opening Balance 3,545  1,795 

Net Income/ (Expenditure) 5,001  1,750 

Closing Balance 8,545  3,545 

    

Total Reserves 10,403  5,403 

    

Note 19 Credit of Prior Year Expense 

Credit from Prior Year Expense 26,925  - 

    

Note 20 Asset Impairment Charge  

Barter Dollars  -  12,992 

    

 2011  2010 

 $  $ 

Note 18 -  Reserves Continued 
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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC 

ABN: 75 787 573 633 

Independent Audit Report to The Members of Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc 

 

Report on the Financial Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of Randwick 
District Rugby Union Football Club Inc, which comprises the balance sheet as at 31 December 2010, and the 
income and expenditure statement, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes 
and the statement by members of the committee. 

 

Committee's Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The committee of the association is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial re-
port and have determined that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements, which 
form part of the financial report, are consistent with the financial reporting requirements of the Associations 
Incorporation Act New South Wales and are appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The committee's 
responsibilities also include establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; se-
lecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in 
the circumstances. 

 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. No opinion is expressed 
as to whether the accounting policies used, as described in Note 1, are appropriate to meet the needs of the 
members. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Stand-
ards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstate-
ment. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk as-
sessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. An audit also in-
cludes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report. 

 

The financial report has been prepared for distribution to members for the purpose of fulfilling the commit-
tee's financial reporting under the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales. We disclaim any as-
sumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report or on the financial report to which it relates to any 
person other than the members, or for any purpose other that that for which it was prepared. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

 

Independence 

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of Australian professional 
ethical pronouncements. 
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 Auditor's Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial report of Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc. presents fairly, in all 
material respects the financial position of Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc. as of 31 Decem-
ber 2011 and of its financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting policies 
described in Note 1 to the financial statements. 

  

Name of Firm:  

  

Name of Partner:  

  

Address: 

  

  

Dated this                                             day of                                 2011 

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC 

ABN: 75 787 573 633 

Statement by Members of the Committee 

 

The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose 
financial report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the fi-
nancial statements. 

 

In the opinion of the committee the financial report as set out on pages 2 to 6: 

 

1. Presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc 
as at 31 December 2011 and its performance for the year ended on that date. 

 

2. At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that Randwick District Rugby Un-
ion Football Club Inc will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due. 

 

The statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee and is signed for and on behalf of 
the Committee by: 

 

 

President: ___________________________________ Anthony Bell  

 

 

Treasurer: ___________________________________Quentin Olde 



Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc. 2011 Annual Report 

64 

 

NSW Grade Premiers 
 

The Randwick Club was formed in 1882 and has completed in the NSW first division completion 
from 1889 to 1899, in 1914 and from 1923 to date (there was no competitive rugby played from 
1915 to 1918). The Club fielded a Reserve and Third Grade sides in first division from 1908 to 
1914. In the years when it was not in first division Randwick completed in what is now the sub-
districts competition. Randwick’s successes in the NSW Club Championship and Grade 
Premierships follow:- 

 

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP 28 

1926,1928,1930,1939,1940,1944,1946,1965,1966.1967,1973,1980,1981,1982,1983, 

1984,1985, 1986, 1988,1989,1990,1991,1992,1994,1995,1996,2000,2003 

 

FIRST GRADE PREMIERS 32 

1894,1895,1896,1897,1930,1934,1938,1940,1948,1959,1965,1966,1967,1971,1973, 
1974,1978,1979,1980,1981,1982,1984,1987,1988,1989,1990,1991,1992,1994,1996, 

2000, 2004 

 

RESERVE GRADE PREMIERS 16 

1930,1944,1946,1957,1958,1959,1966,1978,1980,1984,1985,1991,1992,1994,1996, 2004 

 

THIRD GRADE PREMIERS 16 

1912,1939,1943,1953,1963,1965,1966,1979,1982,1988,1989,1992,1999,2000,2004, 2010 

 

FOURTH GRADE PREMIERS 19 

1933,1937,1938,1942,1965(JP),1967,1968,1972,1974, 1980,  
(JP),1982,1984,1987,1989,1990,1997,2002, 2008,2009 

 

FIFTH GRADE PREMIERS 18 

1976,1977,1978,1979,1980,1981,1982,1985,1987,1988,1989,1991,1992,1993,1996, 
1999,2002,2010 

 

SIXTH GRADE PREMIERS 6 

1986,1988 (JP),1990,1994,1995,1996 
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SEVENTH GRADE PREMIERS 1 

1990 Sub Districts Walker Cup 

 

FIRST GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 10 

1972,1974,1976,1978,1981(JP),1982,1986,1989,1991,1995 

 

SECOND GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 8 

1970,1972,1975,1984,1985,1987,1996, 2000 

 

THIRD GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 3 

1984,1985 (JP)1991 

 

UNDER 19s PREMIERS 2 

1997, 2006 
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Outstanding Club Performances by a Randwick Player 

 

Most Points Scored by a Randwick Player: 

 

David Knox (1982 to 1998) 

246 games: 55 Tries, 536 Goals, 510 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 2842 Points. 

His total made him the highest point scorer in Australian Club rugby. 

Gareth Smith (1991 to 2004) 

243 games: 94 Tries, 449 Goals, 277 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 2191 points. 

Warwick Wheeler (1966 to 1976) 

232 games: 46 Tries, 232 Goals, 260 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1932 points. 

Mick Stynes (1957 to 1969) 

181 games: 15 Tries, 190 Goals, 174 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1149 points 

Dave Ramsay (1978 to 1984) 

139 games: 31 Tries, 226 Goals, 159 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1053 points. 

 

Most Goals in a First Grade Match: 

 

Gareth Smith (2003) 

Kicked 13 goals against Warringah on 21 June 2003 at Coogee Oval. 

 

David Knox (1994) 

Kicked 12 goals against Drummoyne  on 23 April 1994 at Coogee Oval. 

 

Try Scoring Feats in First Grade  over a Career: 

Only two Randwick  players, Terry Ryan and Cyril Towers, scored 100 or more First Grade tries. 

Terry Ryan (1970 to 1975) scored 106 tries in his 6 seasons as a winger with the Randwick 
Club. 

Cyril Towers (1925 to 1942) played at outside centre and scored 104 tries in his 18 seasons.  
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Tries Scored in First Grade in a Season: 

 

Terry Ryan (1970 and 1971) established in 1970 a new competition record by scoring 24 tries in 
17 games. In 1971 he broke his own record for a season by scoring 25 tries in 20 games. 

Jack Gray-Spence (1936) was the first Randwick player to establish a competition record. His 
achievement stood at 23 tries scored in 20 games until broken by T Ryan in 1970. 

 

Tries in a First Grade Game: 

 

Michael Cleary (1961), established a new record of 7 tries in a match against Eastwood on 

19 August 1961 at Coogee Oval. This record stands today but was later equalled by a Gordon 
player. The previous record of 6 tries was held by two Randwick wingers: Owen Crossman 
(1924) and Len Slattery (1945). 

 

First Grade Games: 

 

John Maxwell (1972 to 1992) In his 21 seasons as a back row forward J Maxwell played 323 
First Grade games, by far a Club record. He also played 428 Club games, the second highest to-
tal for Randwick. He appeared in 14 First Grade Grand Finals and was on the winning side 10 
times. 

John Weber (1960 to 1973) A lock and mainstay of the pack J Weber played 234 games over 
his 14 seasons, breaking the record set by C Towers.  

Cyril Towers (1925 to 1942) Best remembered as one of Australia’s greatest outside centres C 
Towers played in 233 First Grade games, then a Club record. 

 

Most Club Games: 

 

Bill Outterside (1952 to 1976) The Club record for the most matches played for Randwick is 
held by W Outterside at 432 games, of which, 205 were played in First Grade. Unlikely to be sur-
passed, his record was established over 25 seasons.     
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Randwick Hall of Fame 
 

The inaugural induction of 16 past players into the Randwick Rugby Hall of Fame took place on 9 

September 2010 at the Hilton Hotel. 700 people joined the Club to celebrate the first group of 

inductees. Former Wallaby Rod Kafer acted as Master of Ceremonies for this occasion. Rod 

again served the Club as MC for the second induction ceremony held on 21 July 2011. Again at 

the Hilton Hotel, 600 people were present to receive 7 additional past player inductees. The 

names of those admitted to the Club’s Hall of Fame are listed alphabetically by years. 

 

 2010                                         2011 

JE Brass RSF Dwyer 

AJ Buchan E Jones 

DI Campese PN Kearns 

KW Catchpole JM Maxwell 

MG Ella FW Meagher 

RL Fairfax R Outterside 

PG Johnson KS Windon 

EJA McKenzie 

AR Morton 

SP Poidevin 

JL Sayle 

Sir NM Shehadie 

RN Thornett 

CH Towers 

WW Waugh    

CJ Windon 
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President 

  

1923 - 1938  J M Dunningham 

1939 - 1953  C R Davidson 

1954 - 1966  F W Meagher 

1967 - 1975  H J C Kahl 

1976 - 1988  R W Meagher 

1989 - 1994  P K Court 

1995 - 2002  J L Sayle 

2003 - 2005  D C Cleary 

2006—2009  I A North 

2010  B M Jorgensen 

2011  A F Bell 

  

Deputy President 

  

1973 - 1975  R W Meagher 

1976    R S F Dwyer 

1977    P M Willcox 

1978 - 1988  P K Court 

1989 - 1990  J Cotis 

1991    P Pye 

1992 - 1994  S Wheeler 

1995    J Cotis 

    I M Kennedy 

1996    I M Kennedy 

1997 - 1998  J Tuxworth 

1999 - 2001   B Sobb 

2002 - 2004  J Murray 

  

Hon. Secretary 

  

1923 - 1924  E C Green 

1925 - 1926  W K Stewart 

1927 - 1931  N E Eglese 

1932 - 1941  M M Atkins 

1942 - 1943  W G Archer 

1943 - 1948  J V Maloney 

1949 - 1950  V Ford 

1951 - 1966  H J Kahl 

1967 - 1968  R B Ford 

1969  A M Moore 

1970 - 1976  P M Willcox 

1977 - 1978  K R Devlin 

1978    P M Willcox 

1979 - 1985  K Bull 

1985 – 1988  R Graham 

1989 - 1992  V Singer 

1993 - 1995  E Turner 

1996 - 2003  D Eggins 

2004 - 2005  R Illidge 

2006    D Eggins 

Randwick Rugby Club Statistics 
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 Hon. Treasurer 

 

1923 - 1926  C Bluett 

1927 - 1942  E K Dobbs 

1943    J V Maloney 

1943 - 1948  M M Atkins 

1949 - 1954  J F Lane 

1955    E Howe 

1955 - 1956  J F Lane 
1957 - 1960  A Blomberg 

1961 - 1964  R W Meagher 

1965 - 1966  A Dumbleton 

1967 - 1972  R W Meagher 

1973 - 1977  C H New 

1978    K Bull 

1979 - 1983  N Frumar 

1984    P McGuinn 

1985    A Manollaros 

1986    K Campbell 

1987    P M Willcox 

1988 - 1989  J L Sayle 

1990 - 2003  D Henry 

2004 - 2005   I Bonnette 

2006 - 2009  R W Meagher 

2010    Q Olde 

 

Club Coach 

 

1923 - 1930  H W Baker 

1931 - 1953  F M Meagher 

1954    C G Stone 

1955 - 1957  C Windon 

1958 - 1960  C Thornley 

1961 - 1962  H Stephen 

Club Coach (continued) 

 

1963 - 1964  C Thornley 

1965 - 1969  J Hovey 

1970 - 1976  R Outterside 

1977 - 1981  R S F Dwyer  

1982 - 1983  J L Sayle 

1984 - 1988  R S F Dwyer 

1989    A A Gaffney 

1990 - 1991  J L Sayle 

1992    A A Gaffney 

1993 - 1995  J Maxwell 

1996 - 2001  J L Sayle 

2002    J Maxwell 

2003 - 2004  G Gavalas 

2004    Glen Ella 

2005    J Sayle/M Kennedy 

2006    T Louden 

2007    M Giacheri/J Evans 

2008    M Giacheri 

2009    G Ella 

2010    M Giacheri 

2011    C Morrison 

 

Club Captain 

 

1981 - 1988  S Wheeler 

1989 - 1991  P Willey 

1992    R Keyes 

1993 - 1994  P Willey 

1995    T Kava 

1996 - 2001  R Willey 

2002 - 2003  D Grant 

2004 - 2005  C Houston 
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Club Captain (continued) 

2006    D Grant 

2007    K Turner 

2008    N McMahon 

2009- 2010  D Spencer 

2011    A Savovski / T Weber 

 

First Grade Captains 

 

1923    W K Stewart 

1924    F W Meagher 

1925 - 1926  L Palfreyman 

1927 - 1930  F W Meagher 

1931 - 1934  J O’Connor 

1935    C H Towers 

1936 - 1937  V Richards 

1938 - 1942  C H Towers 

1944 - 1947  J Cremin 

1948 - 1949  C Windon 

1950  N Shehadie 

1951 - 1952  C Windon 

1953  N Shehadie 

  J Hovey 

1954 - 1956  N Shehadie 

1957  R M Tooth 

1958 - 1961  R Outterside 

1962  K Catchpole/A Moore 

1963 - 1968  K Catchpole 

1969 - 1970  J Quick 

1971  K Catchpole 

1972  W Outterside 

1973 - 1975  A Norley 

1976  I Kennedy 

1977  A Jones 

First Grade Captains (continued) 

 

1978 - 1979  I Kennedy 

1977 - 1980  M Ella 

1981 - 1982  R Evan 

1983 - 1984  M Ella 

1985  S Poidevin 

1986 - 1987  B Burke 

1988  T Kava/B Burke 

1989  M Murray/B Burke 

1990 - 1991  M Murray 

1992 - 1993  T P Kava 

1994  L Walker 

1995  T P Kava 

1996  P Cheika 

1997  P Cheika/M Cheika 

1998 - 1999 M Cheika 

2000  D Ryan/S Pinkerton 

2001  D Ryan / S Pinkerton 

2002  D McRae 

2003  L Donald / D McRae / 
  O Finegan 

2004 - 2005  S Berne 

2006-2007 C Houston 

2008      C Houston / S Hoiles  

2009   A Halangahu 

2010  G Fairbanks / P Phibbs 

2011  T McGann  
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200 Senior Club Games  

 
WT Outterside 432 

JM Maxwell 428 

JL Sayle 379 

RJ Willey 365 

G Logan 356 

RSF Dwyer 347 

V Singer 324 

M Kondilios 312 

SA Wheeler 310 

P Cheika 296 

RP Illidge 289 

PE Willey 287 

M Cheika 286 

G Karras 286 

J Picone 283 

JM Weber 282 

LJ Walker 278 

RN Tomlinson 276 

J Waqanabaravi 272 

I Hartley 262 

G Sommerville 259 

TG Evans 256 

T Maxwell 256 

T Cripps 254 

P Antoniades 253 

M Della Marta 253 

M Ramsay 253 

DJ Knox 250 

M Spurgeon 246 

G Smith 243 

A Sing 241 

PG Johnson 239 

T Purdy 239 

IM Kennedy 236 

WT Matthews 234 

K Seiler 234 

CH Towers 234 

DA Watson 234 

WA Wheeler 232 

DE Henry 229 

S Ramsay 229 

PM Slyney 229 

D Ryan 227 

R Evans 224 

MS Young 222 

W Melrose 222 

RH Day 220 

KL Bull 219 

L Davidson 219 

P O'Sullivan 217 

JW Turner 217 

J Riley 216 

KAP Phibbs 214 

S Baker 213 

A Bargenda 213 

D Rapp 211 

E Jones 210 

A Norley 210 

AA Gaffney 209 

B Hayes 208 

DP Habler 206 

KG Brown 203 

D Grant 203 

M Kemp 202 

MJ Murray 202 

R Pye 202 

C Seroukas 202 

T Tanner 202 

G Stores 200 

J Tuxworth 200 

mailto:W@eber
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100 First Grade Games 

John Maxwell 323 

Tim Maxwell 256 

John Weber 234 

Cyril Towers 233 

Lloyd Walker 225 

Peter Johnson 215 

David Knox 213 

Sean Baker 213 

Michael Cheika 212 

Bill Outterside 205 

Alan Sing 200 

Ken Catchpole 177 

Nick Shehadie 175 

Mick Murray 172 

Ray Evans 163 

Mal Murray 162 

Tim Kava 160 

Jeff Sayle 160 

Warwick Waugh 157 

Nick Howlett 152 

Steve Brennan 151 

Eddie Jones 147 

Bob Outterside 146 

Mick Young 143 

Gavin Boneham 141 

Keith Gordon 141 

Joe Picone 141 

Ian Kennedy 140 

Glen Ella 134 

Jack Hovey 134 

Mick Cremin 132 

Tony Moore 132 

Keith Cross 131 

Jack O’Connor 131 

Alan Norley 131 

Adrian Jones 131 

Len Palfreyman 130 

Pat Slyney 128 

Brad Burke 127 

Acura Niuqila 127 

Gareth Smith 126 

Simon Poidevin 125 

Gary Ella 123 

Chris Houston 118 

Ewen McKenzie 116 

Mick O’Gorman 114 

Steve Brennan 113 

Tony Purdy 112 

Don Furness 111 

Mark Ella 110 

Owen Finegan 110 

Terry Ryan 109 

Mick Rosenberg 108 

Willie Gordon 104 

Omar Hassanein 104 

Terry Reid 103 

Keith Windon 103 

Les Bedford 102 

Denis Cleary 102 

John McGowan 102 

John Cole 102 

Stu Rutherford 102 

Wally Meagher 100 

Mick Stynes 100 

Chris Houston 100 

Patrick Phibbs 100 

Antonio Halangahu 100 
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The Wally Meagher Memorial Trophy 

(Outstanding Clubman) 

 

1970    K W Catchpole 

1971    P G Johnson 

1972    J L Sayle 

1973    J M Weber 

1974    W T Outterside   

1975    R S F Dwyer 

1976    G Lisle 

1977    I M Kennedy 

1980    J Maxwell      

1984    M Ella 

1985    S Wheeler 

1990    E Jones 

1992    M Spurgeon  

1997    P Cheika 

2002    R Willey 

2006    C Whitaker 

2007    A Freier 

2008    S Hoiles 

2009    P Phibbs 

2010    A James 

 

Best and Fairest Award 

 

1965  D Saunders 

1966  K Israel 

1967  K Catchpole 

1968  V Greenfield 

1968 V Singer 

1969  M Stynes 

1970   J Murray 

1970  R Cameron 

Best and Fairest Award (continued) 

 

1971  A Hope 

1972  D Watson 

1973  J Berne 

1974  J Davis 

1975  M McMahon 

1976  J Maxwell 

1977  S McElhone 

1978  J Tuxworth 

1979  W Taylor 

1980  D Taylor 

1981  A Back 

1982  E Jones 

1983  P Willey 

1984  B Burke 

1985  G Boneham 

1986  M Clift 

1987  I Tomasiello 

1988   L Walker 

1989  S Poidevin 

1990  A James 

1991  A McDonald 

1992  D Kelaher 

1993  M Girvan 

1994  D Jepson 

1995  C Whitaker 

1996  L Donald 

1997  B Gill 

1998  L Kama 

1999  D Ryan 

2000   L Donald    

2001   D Grant    

2002   D McRae   
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Best and Fairest Award (continued) 

 

2003   D Haare   

2004   S Berne 

2005   E Wyllie   

2006   A Halangahu 

2007   M Whittleston 

2008   S Kepu 

2009   B Orbell 

2010   L Taukeiaho 

2011   T McGann 

 

The Ron Don Trophy 

(Most Improved Player) 

 

1967   M Carpenter   

1968   B Fahey    

1969   K Bullivant 

1970   K Phibbs 

1971   C Allsop 

1972   C Allsop  

1973   J Davis 

1974   G Pearse 

1975   W Mackey  

1976   A Purdy   

1977   G McElhone 

1977   G Conacher 

1978   F Back 

1979   W Taylor 

1980   M Ella    

1981     J Tuxworth 

1982   E Jones  

1983   I Kava 

1984   T Evans 

The Ron Don Trophy  

(Most Improved Player) (continued) 

 

1985  E Jones 

1986  E McKenzie 

1987  E McKenzie 

1988   M Cheika 

1989   P Kearns 

1990   J Flett 

1991   H Charalambous 

1992   M Kemp 

1993   D Junee  

1994   J Picone 

1995   J Thompson 

1996   C Whitaker 

1997   B Gill 

1998   O Hassanein 

1999   A Freier 

2000   J Pritchard 

2001   J Shelley 

2002   A Freier 

2003   M Turinui 

2004   S Hoiles 

2005   E Wyllie 

2006   A Aiken 

2007   D Edwards 

2008   D Viser 

2009  D Parsons 

2010  J Terry 

2011  M Toa 
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The Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy 

(Best Clubman in 4th Grade) 

 

1962  V Lee 

1963  W O’Brien 

1964  R Finnie 

1965  P Court 

1966  P Kennedy   

1967  P Fahey   

1968  G Lisle  

1969  W McKinley 

1970  G Lisle 

1971  K Robinson 

1972   G Farrant 

1973   C Faulks 

1974   C Walker 

1975   R Slater 

1976   M McMahon 

1977   I Hartley  

1978   K Harron 

1979   R Day 

1980   F Back 

1981   G Stokes 

1982   M Stokes 

1983   W Negus  

1984   M Rains 

1985   P O’Sullivan 

1986   D Rapp 

1987   P Kennedy 

1988   S Morgan 

1989   R Illidge 

1990  P Antoniades 

1991   L Davison 

1992  M Wild 

The Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy 

(Best Clubman in 4th Grade) (continued) 

 

1993   S Brown 

1994   R Keyes 

1995   R Willey 

1996   D White 

1997   A Henrys 

1998   C Martlew 

1999   A Mann 

2000   C Trimmer 

2001   B Bishop 

2002   P Ringland 

2003   J Shelley 

2004   L Galpern 

2005   E Wyllie 

2006   N Davies 

2007   D Gee 

2008   L McKay 

2009   S Lolo 

2010   T Weber 

2011   T Martin 

 

Aiden Wilson Memorial Trophy 

(Colts Clubman of the Year) 

 

2007   A Patty 

2008   M Gibson 

2009   L Henry 

2010   T Jeffs 

2011   J Weatherall 
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Laurie Argue Memorial Trophy 

 

2007   First and Third Grade 

   (Equal 76 tries) 

2008   Fourth Grade (183 tries) 

2009   Second Grade (139 tries) 

2010   Second Grade (122 tries) 

2011   Third Grade (129 tries) 

 

Best Clubman of the Year 

 

2006   C Houston 

2007   N McMahon 

2008   P Wright 

2009   A James 

2010   A James 

2011   T Maxwell 

 

Rookie of the Year 

 

2007   D Kroll  

2008   T Luxford 

2009   P Hodgetts 

2010   M Mackay 

2011   E Ford 

 
 



Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc. 2011 Annual Report 

78 

 

Represented Australia [101] 

      

PLAYER  PLAYER  PLAYER  

H W Baker [Harald] 3 D C Furness [Don] 1 A S Niuqila [Acura] 3 

H S Barker [Herb] 7 M J Giteau [Matt] 92 D S O'Callaghan [Denis]  

K Beale [Kurtley] 22 K M Gordon [Keith] 2 J A O'Connor [Jack] 4 

J E Berne [John] 1 G M Gregan * [George]  129 J B O'Donnell [John] 3 

C D Blades [Cameron] 1 P F Hawthorne [Phil] 2 R Outterside [Bob] 2 

A J Bowers [Allen] 2 E L J Heinrich [Ted] 10 J R L Palfreyman [Len] 4 

J E Brass [John] 12 V W Heinrich [Vince] 2 G K Pearse [Gary] 9 

J V Brown [Jim] 9 S A Hoiles [Stephen]  16 B J C Piper [Brian] 6 

A J Buchan [Arthur]  7 J C Holbeck [James] 8 S P Poidevin * [Simon] 49 

B T Burke [Brad] 1 M L Howell [Max] 5 B J Porter [Basil]  

M P Burke [Matt] 23 P G Johnson * [Peter] 42 K M Ramsay [Mack] 4 

B C Caldwell [Bruce] 1 P A Jones [Peter] 2 R Rankin [Ron]  

D I Campese [David] 101 J Jones-Hughes [Jason]  T W Reid [Terry] 5 

K W Catchpole * [Ken] 27 P K Jorgensen [Peter] 2 V Richards [Vic] 5 

R M Cawsey [Roy] 3 P B Judd [Bruce] 8 M S Rogers [Matt] 7 

M Chisholm [Mark] 48 D K Junee [Darren] 2 G Ruebner [George] 2 

M A Cleary [Michael] 6 T P Kava [Tim]  J L Sayle [Jeff] 1 

J W Cole [John] 24 P N Kearns * [Phil] 67 N M Shehadie * [Nick] 30 

J F Cremin * [Mick] 3 T P Kelaher [Tim] 31 P V Smith [Phil] 8 

K A Cross [Keith] 19 S M Kepu [Sekope] 14 C G Stone [Gordon] 1 

O C Crossman [Owen] 15 D J Knox [David] 13 R N Thornett [Dick] 11 

A J Daly [Tony] 22 A Magro [Adam]  R M Tooth * [Dick] 2 

J L Duncan [Jackie] 1 B P Malouf [Bruce]  1 C H T Towers * [Cyril] 19 

G A Ella [Gary] 6 F W Meagher [Wally] 8 M P Turinui [Morgan] 20 

G J Ella [Glen] 4 D A Mitchell [Drew] 58 L F Walker [Lloyd] 8 

M G Ella * [Mark] 25 S W J Miller [Syd] 1 W W Waugh [Warwick] 8 

R D Elsom * [Rocky] 75 A M Moore [Tony]  R E Westfield [Bob]  6 

E J Fahey [Ted] 1 C V Morrissey [Tug] 2 C J Whitaker * [Chris] 28 

R L Fairfax [Russell] 8 A R Morton  [Alan] 11 W J White [Bill] 3 

O D A Finegan * [Owen] 55 P J Mulligan [Patsy] 1 J L Williams [John]  3 

A N Finlay ["Huck"] 3 M A Murray [Mick]  C J Windon * [Col] 20 

J A Flett [John] 4 A McDonald [Adrian]  K S Windon [Keith] 3 

J A Francis [John]   B S McDonald [Barry] 2 K J Wright [Ken] 9 

A L Freier [Adam] 25 E J A McKenzie [Ewen] 51   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Australian Captains 

Randwick has produced 101 Australian representative players. 

The twelve Wallaby tourists who did not play in tests are: 

John Francis, Jason Jones-Huges, Tim Kava, Adrian McDonald, Adam Magro, Tony Moore, 
Mick Murray, Denis O’Callaghan, Basil Porter, Ron Rankin. 
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Notes: The aforementioned list of Australian representatives includes: 

 

Members of NSW sides from 1923 to 1928 inclusive, who played against New Zealand, 
Maori and British sides and all of whom have since been accorded Australian  
representative status. 

Members of the 1939/40 Australian side which arrived in Britain at the outbreak of World 
War 2, played no games in Europe, and who have been accorded test representative  
status.  

Each player’s games include only those in which he appeared while with the Randwick club. 

George Gregan is Australia’s most capped test player with 139 tests [129 with Randwick]. 
David Campese with 101 tests [74 with Randwick] and Simon Poidevin [49 tests with 
Randwick] were previously Australia’s most capped players, as were Peter Johnson [42] 
and Nick Shehadie [30]. 

 

Captains of Australia [13] 

Ken Catchpole, Mark Ella, Owen Finegan, George Gregan, Peter Johnson, Phil Kearns,  
Simon Poidevin, Nick Shehadie, Dick Tooth, Cyril Towers, Chris Whitaker, Rocky Elsom and Col 
Windon. 

 

Wallabies Hall of Fame 

The following six Randwick players have been inducted in the Wallabies Hall of Fame: 

  

David Campese 

Ken Catchpole 

Mark Ella 

Sir Nicholas Shehadie 

Cyril Towers 

Col Windon 
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Australian Under 20/21 Representatives [33] 

 

1980 Glen J Ella, Gary A Ella, George Gavalas, Tim Lane, Lloyd J Walker 

1983 Matthew P Burke, Michael E Murray       

1984 Timothy P Kava             

1988 Michael Cheika, Phillip N Kearns       

1989 Jason A Weber, George Websdale       

1990 Jason A Weber, George Websdale       

1991 Peter Jorgensen             

1993 Owen D A Finegan, Peter Jorgensen, David Kelaher       

1994 James Holbeck, Peter Jorgensen, Craig McMullen, Stuart Pinkerton 

1996 Chris Latham             

1997 Jason Jones-Hughes, Luke Mann, Fosi Pala'amo, Christian Warner 

1998 Brendan Williams             

1999 Matthew Bowman, Shaun Berne, William Gordon, Brendan Williams 

2000 Matthew Bowman, Adam Freier, William Gordon       

2001 Adam Freier             

2002 Morgan Turinui             

2003 Rocky Elsom, Lei Tomiki         

2004 Rocky Elsom, Rex Tapuai, Lei Tomiki       

2008 Ratu Nasiganiyavi [under 20]       

Australian Sevens Representatives (35) 

Brad Burke Wise Kativerata     Patrick Phibbs  

Vincent Byrne David Kelaher     Simon Poidevin  

David Campese Timothy Kelaher     Qele Ratu  

John Carse Daniel Kroll     Matthew Rogers  

Nick Cummins Arthur Little     Gareth Smith  

Glen Ella John Maxwell     Morgan Turinui  

Mark Ella Shawn Mackay     Henry Vanderglas  

John Flett Craig McMullen     Tim Walsh  

Shaun Foley Luke Milton   Brendan Williams  

William Gordon Acura S Niuqila     Kenneth Wright  

Stephen Hoiles Gerry O'Neill     Timothy Wright  

Darren Junee Gary Pearse       

Australia’s Deaf Rugby Team Representative 

Lucas Marquardt          
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 Represented New South Wales [195] 
Baker HW Harald 1  Flett JA John 4  Marron JH John 1  Rogers MS          Matt 18 

Barker HS Herb 9  Francis JA John 1  Marron JH John 1  Rowntree RMW  Ralph 4 

Barker S Scott 1  Fraser J A  John 5  Marsden WA Warren 2  Ruebner G George 3 

Barrie W Bill 17  Freier A L  * Adam 84  Marshall AA Arnold 4  Ryan TJ Terry 2 

Beale KJ Kurtley 5  Furness D C  Don 12  Maxwell J John 1  Sayle JL Jeff 3 

Bedford LS Les 4  Galloway W  * "Pony" 17  McDonald A Adrian 2  Scott A  Allen 1 

Berne JE John 4  Garvey N G  Norm 3  McKenzie EJA Ewen 37  Sheehan WBJ Billy 1 

Berne SE Shaun 46  Giacheri M Mark 3  McMahon J John 1  Shehadie * NM Nick 37 

Blades CD Cameron 19  Gordon K M Keith 5  McMahon J * Jim 13  Slee H N   Herman 2 

Bolden R Ron 3  Gray-Spence J John 5  McRae DN    *      Duncan 35  Smith PV Phil 9 

Boneham G Gavin 1  Haare DT John 3  Meagher F W       Wally 20  Stone CG * Gordon 8 

Bowers AJA Allen 8  Hadwin J John 2  Miller M Michael 5  Stynes MJ Mick 1 

Bowman M Matt 1  Hanna A Alf 4  Miller RK Ross 1  Surman F * Frank 15 

Brass JE John 10  Hardiman VJ Vince 1  Miller SWJ Syd 13  Tanner WH Bill 3 

Braund AW Arthur 1  Hassanein O Omar 2  Miller VCL Vic 2  Tapuai RH Rex 3 

Brown JV Jim 9  Hawthorne PF Phil 3  Mitchell DA Drew 14  Thornett KE Ken 5 

Buchan AJ Arthur 6  Heinrich ELJ Ted 11  Moore AM Tony 2  Thornett RN Dick 4 

Burke BT Brad 8  Heinrich VW Vince 3  Morrison JH John 3  Tomiki LH Lei 5 

Burke MP Matt 15  Henlen F * Fred 28  Morton AR Alan 18  Tooth R M  Dick 3 

Caldwell BC Bruce 3  Herd HV Harold 2  Mowen BW Ben 27  Towers C H T  * Cyril 72 

Campese DI * David 56  Hoiles SA Stephen 32  Mulligan PJ Patsy 2  Turinui M P  Morgan 64 

Carlton JA Jimmy 2  Hooton JR John 7  Murray MA * Mick 11  Walker L F  Lloyd 25 

Carraro M Matt 7  Horton P Jack 1  Neilsen S Scott 2  Walsh A S  Adam 1 

Catchpole KW *  Ken 26  Hovey J Jack 1  Nethery M Michael 2  Warner C P  Christian 41 

Cawsey RM Roy 4  Howell ML Max 5  Niuqila AS        Acura 12  Waugh N Nigel 3 

Cheika M Michael 3  Howlett NJ Nick 5  O'Callaghan DS  Denis 3  Waugh WW Warwick 58 

Choromanski M Michael 3  Hoy J Jonnie 4  O'Connor JA Jack 11  Weber JM  John 4 

Clarke C Charlie 1  Hume HJ Harold 2  O'Connor WB Bil 8  Westfield RE Bob 6 

Cleary D Denis 2  Johnson PG * Peter 34  O'Donnell JB John 8  Whitaker CJ * Chris 118 

Cleary MA Michael 6  Jones A Adrian 1  O'Gorman M Mick 2  White WJ             Bill 29 

Cole JW John 20  Jones E Eddie 12  O'Neill GW Gerry 1  Whiteside R Robert 1 

Coleman W Bill 1  Jones PA Peter 2  Outram GH George 6  Williams B Brendan 9 

Cornelson R Rudi 1  Jones-Hughes J Jason 27  Outterside R Bob 6  Williams JL John 2 

Craig GK Greg 4  Jorgensen PK Peter 14  Outterside WT Bill 1  Windon CJ * Col 26 

Cremin JF * Mick 10  Judd PB             Bruce 20  Pakalani A Atieli 10  Windon K S * Keith 16 

Cross KA Keith 27  Junee DK Darren 19  Palfreyman JRL   Len 21  Winn CS Charlie 7 

Crossman OC    Owen 15  Kativerata W Wise 3  Parish HP Harold 8  Wright KJ Ken 6 

Daly AJ    *  Tony 29  Kava TO Tim 34  Pauling TG Tom 3  Wright T Tim 4 

Duggan T Tom 3  Kearns PN * Phil 73  Pearse Gk Gary 10  Young M Mick 3 

Duncan JL       Jackie 10  Kelaher TO Tim 29  Penfold RF Ron 1     

Dyson FJ Fletcher 4  Kepu SM Sekope 20  Phibbs P Patrick 1     

Ella GA Gary 27  Knox DJ David 25  Pinkerton S I * Stuart 66     

Ella GJ Glen 25  Larnach-Jones GR Rex 7  Piper BJC  Brian 6     

Ella MG * Mark 26  Latham CE         Chris 10  Poidevin SP * Simon 49     

Elsom RD Rocky 65  Lay RW Bob 2  Porter BJ Basil 3     

Evans CD Charlie 6  Lewis RW Bob 2  Purnell FA Frank 2     

Fahey EJ * Ted 7  Little AD Arthur 4  Ramsay KM Mack 11     

Fairfax RL Russell 5  Mackay S Shawn 6  Rankin R Ron 3     

Finegan ODA Owen 6  Magro A Adam 4  Rathie DS David 3     

Finlay AN * Huck 5  Malone T Tom 1  Reid TW Terry 11     

Fisher I Igo 2  Malouf BP Bruce 8  Richards V * Vic 18     

Fitzgerald JF   1  Manlowe J John 1  Riley ON  Oliver 9     
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Captains of NSW [27] 

Shaun Berne, Brad Burke, David Campese, Ken Catchpole, Mick Cremin, Tony Daly, Mark Ella, 

Ted Fahey, Huck Finlay, Adam Freier, Pony Galloway, Fred Henlen, Peter Johnson, Phil Kearns, 

Mick Murray, Jim McMahon, Duncan McRae, Stuart Pinkerton, Simon Poidevin, Vic Richards, 

Nick Shehadie, Gordon Stone, Frank Surman, Cyril Towers, Chris Whitaker, Col Windon, 

Keith Windon.             

Matthew Carraro  

Mark Chisholm  

Rocky Elsom  

Frankie Fainifo  

Gene Fairbanks  

Owen D A Finegan  

Scott Flint  

Adam Freier  

William Gordon  

George Gregan  

Stephen Hoiles  

James Holbeck  

David J Knox  

Shawn Mackay  

Adam Magro  

Ewen J McKenzie  

Craig McMullen  

Patrick Phibbs  

Josh Valentine  

Henry Vanderglas  

Warwick W Waugh  

Brendan Williams  

Timothy Wright  

 

 

 

 

 

Represented Australian Capital Territory [22] 
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Captains of ACT [4] 

Owen Finegan 

George Gregan 

Ewen Mckenzie 

Stephen Hoiles 

 

Represented Queensland [4] 

Dayna Edwards  

Shawn Mackay  

Morgan Turinui  

Warwick W Waugh  

 

Represented Victoria [1] 

Adam Freier  

 

Represented Western Australia [7] 

Cruz Ah-Nau  

Phoenix Battye  

Nicholas Cummins  

Gene Fairbanks  

Matt Giteau  

Drew Mitchell  

Josh Valentine  

 

 
 

Represented in Australian Rugby 

Championship 2007 

 

Sydney Fleet [9] 

S Baker, D Edwards, A Halangahu,  
C Houston, D Kroll, A Little, J Price, 
M Turinui, M Whittleson 

 

Canberra Vikings [3] 

M Carraro, P Phibbs, T Wright 

 

Perth Storm [1] 

N Cummins 

 

Melbourne Rebels [1] 

S Mackay
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Australian Services Rugby Union 2011 Randwick Representatives  

Represented Sydney Against National Teams [46] 

John E Berne 1 Omar Hassanein 2 Acura S Niuqila 1 

Shaun Berne 1 Phil Hawthorne 1 Alan Norley 1 

Gavin Boneham 1 Peter G Johnson 5 Gary K Pearse 4 

John E Brass 2 Adrian Jones 1 Stuart Pinkerton 1 

Brad T Burke 1 Eddie Jones 1 Simon P Poidevin 5 

Matthew P Burke 2 Peter Jorgensen 2 Terry Ryan 1 

Kenneth W Catchpole 2 Darren K Junee 2 Phillip V Smith 2 

John W Cole 5 Timothy P Kava 3 Rex Tapuai 1 

Gary A Ella 5 Phillip N Kearns 1 Lei Tomiki 1 

Glen J Ella 6 Timothy P Kelaher 2 Morgan P Turinui 1 

Mark G Ella 6 David J Knox 3 Lloyd J Walker 2 

Ray Evans 1 Arthur Little 1 Warwick W Waugh 3 

Russell L Fairfax 2 Bruce P Malouf 2 John M Weber 2 

Igo Fisher 1 Adrian McDonald 2 Jeffrey Williams 1 

John A Flett 2 Ewen J McKenzie 1 Kenneth J Wright 3 

    Duncan McRae 1     
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Points Scored By Individual Grade Players 

Player 
First Grade Second Grade Third Grade Fourth Grade Fifth Grade 

  T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts 

Ben Allard       0 1     5 1 2 1 12       0   1   2 

Jioje Aropio       0       0       0       0 1     5 

Jai Ayoub 1 10 2 31 3 26 11 100       0       0       0 

James Ball       0       0       0 5     25       0 

Brendan Barnes       0 2 23 9 83 3 31 9 104 1 10   25       0 

Chris Barron       0 3     15 7     35       0       0 

Sam Bartlett 1     5 1     5       0 2   1 13       0 

Jack Baxter       0       0       0       0   1   2 

Trent Beilkin       0       0   9   18 3 15 5 60       0 

Tom Bennett       0       0       0 1     5       0 

Stephen Bennie       0 1     5 4     20       0       0 

Dominic Bower       0 8 7   54 1     5 3   2 21       0 

Jordan Brown       0       0       0 7     35       0 

Charlie Brown       0       0 1     5       0       0 

Toby Browne 4 57 30 224       0       0       0       0 

Steve Casamento       0 1     5 5     25 4     20 3     15 

Admir Cejvanovic       0       0       0       0 2     10 

Mathew Curtis       0       0 6     30       0       0 

Timothy Davidson       0       0 2     10       0       0 

Brendan Davis       0       0       0       0 3 22 1 62 

Scott Dehaan       0               0       0 1     5 

Steve Donoghue       0       0       0       0 2     10 

Adrian Duchini       0 2     10       0       0       0 

John Ellis       0       0       0 5     25       0 

Brady Engert       0 2     10 2 1   12       0       0 

Dexter Everingham       0       0       0       0 4     20 

Dave Farrugia       0       0       0 1     5 2     10 

Drew Ferguson       0       0 1     5 3 2 2 25 6 2   34 

George Fifita       0 1     5 1     5       0       0 

Marcos Flegman       0       0       0       0 3     15 

Shaun Foley 7     35       0       0       0       0 

John Fonokalafi 1     5 2     10       0       0       0 

Ethan Ford 11     55 5     25       0       0       0 

Adam Freier 2     10       0       0       0       0 

Lloyd Galpern       0 1     5 4     20       0       0 

Michael Gibson       0 13 15 1 98 13 30 1 128       0       0 

Mathew Giteau 2 1   12       0       0       0       0 

Antonio Halangahu 5     25       0       0       0       0 

Paul Hanniffy 1     5 4 1   22 2     10       0       0 
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Player 
First Grade Second Grade Third Grade Fourth Grade Fifth Grade 

  T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F 
  

Pts 

Jason Harrington       0       0       0 2     10       0 

Isaac Harris       0       0       0   12   24   2   4 

Patrick Hodgetts       0 1     5 1     5 1     5       0 

Kane Hurst       0       0           1   2 2 5 5 35 

Geoff Ingram 1     5       0       0       0       0 

Andrew James       0       0 1     5       0       0 

Tom Jenkins       0       0 2     10 7     35       0 

Ben Jones       0 3     15       0 3     15       0 

Tom Joseph 8     40 8     40       0       0       0 

Alan Kaihau       0       0       0 3     15 2     10 

Michael Kaissis       0       0       0 1     5 3     15 

Martin Keirnan       0       0       0       0 3     15 

Sione Kepu       0       0 4     20       0       0 

Cameron Kesby       0       0 1     5 3     15       0 

 Seilala Lam 4     20       0       0       0       0 

Remi Laramandieu       0       0       0       0 3     15 

Daniel Laveta       0       0 5     25 2     10 2     10 

Kemble Leasusu       0       0 15     75 4     20       0 

Daniel Loader       0 4 3 6 44       0       0       0 

Sam Lolo       0       0       0 1     5 1     5 

Matt Mackay       0 6     30 1     5       0       0 

Bryson Madigan       0       0       0 2 2   14   2   4 

Makoni Mafi       0 1     5       0       0       0 

Neville Magee       0 1     5       0       0       0 

Finau Makamaka 4     20 1     5 8     40       0       0 

Scott Malone       0       0       0       0 2     10 

Todd Martin       0       0       0 1     5 2     10 

Imran  Masood       0       0       0 4     20       0 

Anaru Mathews       0 3     15 1     5       0       0 

Alastair McFarland 4     20 4     20       0       0       0 

Tim McGann 3     15       0       0       0       0 

Art McGee       0       0       0 1     5       0 

Sam McGregor       0       0       0       0 2     10 

Lachan McKay       0       0   3   6       0       0 

Nathon McMahon       0       0       0   3   6       0 

Junior Mekuri       0       0       0       0 1     5 

Patrick Mekuri       0 1     5       0 3     15       0 

Glen Mekuri       0       0       0   6 1 15       0 

Sam Milgate       0       0       0 1     5       0 

Ben Mowen 1     5       0       0       0       0 

Steven Noriega 2     10       0       0       0       0 

Charlie O' Connor       0       0 1     5       0       0 
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Player 
First Grade Second Grade Third Grade Fourth Grade Fifth Grade 

  T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts 

Darren O'Shea       0       0 2     10       0       0 

Dave Parsons 2     10       0       0       0       0 

Luke Parsons 6     30       0       0       0       0 

Kea Pereira       0       0       0       0 7     35 

David (Huw) Phillips       0       0       0       0 3     15 

Bob Polosak       0       0       0       0 1     5 

Rory Rafferty       0       0       0       0   2   4 

Serevi Ratu       0       0 1     5       0       0 

Dan Robertson       0       0       0 6     30       0 

Tom Rose       0       0       0 2     10 1     5 

Ben Rowe       0       0 1     5       0       0 

Andrew Ryan       0       0 1     5 1     5       0 

Naibuka Saune       0       0       0 2     10 1     5 

Anthony Savovski       0       0   1   2       0       0 

Eoin Scannell       0       0       0       0 1     5 

Clinton Sills 14     70       0       0       0       0 

S'oseso (Joe) Smith       0       0       0 1     5       0 

Hugh Sommerville       0 9     45 3     15       0       0 

Bryce Speechley       0 2     10 2     10       0       0 

Daniel Spencer       0 2     10       0       0       0 

Richard Swain       0       0       0   1   2       0 

John Tamanika 2     10 1     5       0       0       0 

Damien Tanaka       0       0       0 2 1   12 3 2   19 

Adam Tipping       0       0       0       0 1     5 

Tom Tombleson 1     5 2     10       0       0       0 

Jack Tovey       0 3     15 5     25       0       0 

Bevu Tuqiri 4 2 2 30 2     10       0       0       0 

Josh Valentine 1     5       0       0       0       0 

Chris Vallis               0       0       0 3     15 

Henry Vanderglas 2     10       0       0       0       0 

Lai Vatadroka 1     5       0       0       0       0 

David Viser       0       0 2     10       0       0 

Andrew Waite       0       0       0 1     5       0 

Liam Walker       0       0 1     5       0       0 

Michael Walker-Fitton       0       0 3 1   17 1     5       0 

Henry Weatherall       0       0 1     5       0       0 

Tom Weber       0       0 1     5 3     15       0 

James White       0 2     10 4     20 3 7   29       0 

Andrew  Wing Kee       0 4     20 3     15 8     40       0 
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Player 
First Grade Second Grade Third Grade Fourth Grade Fifth Grade 

  T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts 

Peter Wright       0       0 3     15       0       0 

Timothy Wright 4     20       0       0       0       0 

Nicholas Wright       0       0 2     10 1 1 1 10       0 

Penalty Tries   2     10       0 1     5       0 1     5 

Tally   101 70 34 747 110 75 27 781 129 78 11 834 105 61 12 683 72 39 6 456 
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  2011 Career  Career 

Player 
Season Totals First Grade Points Total points 

  T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts 

Ben Allard 2 3 1 19 0 0 0 0 2 3 1 19 

Jioje Aropio 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Jai Ayoub 4 36 13 131 1 10 2 31 4 36 13 131 

James Ball 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25 

Brendan Barnes 6 64 18 212 0 0 0 0 6 64 18 212 

Chris Barron 10 0 0 50 0 0 0 0 28 0 0 140 

Sam Bartlett 4 0 1 23 1 0 0 5 10 0 1 53 

Jack Baxter 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 

Trent Beilkin 3 24 5 78 0 0 0 0 3 24 5 78 

Tom Bennett 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Stephen Bennie 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 11 2 0 59 

Dominic Bower 12 7 2 80 0 0 0 0 12 7 2 80 

Jordan Brown 7 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35 

Charlie Brown 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Toby Browne 4 57 30 224 9 104 58 427 10 203 74 678 

Steve Casamento 13 0 0 65 0 0 0 0 60 0 0 300 

Admir Cejvanovic 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Mathew Curtis 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 75 

Timothy Davidson 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Brendan Davis 3 22 1 62 0 0 0 0 7 55 13 184 

Scott Dehaan 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Steve Donoghue 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Adrian Duchini 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35 

John Ellis 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25 

Brady Engert 4 1 0 22 0 0 0 0 13 24 0 113 

Dexter Everingham 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 

Dave Farrugia 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25 

Drew Ferguson 10 4 2 64 0 0 0 0 10 4 2 64 

George Fifita 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Marcos Flegman 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Shaun Foley 7 0 0 35 13 0 0 65 16 0 0 80 

John Fonokalafi 3 0 0 15 2 0 0 10 7 0 0 35 

Ethan Ford 16 0 0 80 11 0 0 55 16 0 0 80 

Adam Freier 2 0 0 10 35 0 0 175 44 0 0 220 

Lloyd Galpern 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 170 

Michael Gibson 26 45 2 226 0 0 0 0 41 45 2 301 

Mathew Giteau 2 1 0 12 2 1 0 12 2 1 0 12 

Antonio Halangahu 5 0 0 25 16 7 7 115 35 62 20 359 

Paul Hanniffy 7 1 0 37 26 0 0 130 105 28 3 590 

Jason Harrington 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Isaac Harris 0 14 0 28 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 28 

Patrick Hodgetts 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 45 
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  2011 Career  Career 

Player 
Season Totals First Grade Points Total points 

  T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts 

Kane Hurst 2 6 5 37 0 0 0 0 2 6 5 37 

Geoff Ingram 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

Andrew James 1 0 0 5 6 0 0 30 13 0 0 64 

Tom Jenkins 9 0 0 45 0 0 0 0 29 0 0 145 

Ben Jones 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 

Tom Joseph 16 0 0 80 8 0 0 40 29 1 0 147 

Alan Kaihau 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 

Michael Kaissis 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 

Martin Keirnan 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 70 1 0 352 

Sione Kepu 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 70 

Cameron Kesby 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 

 Seilala Lam 4 0 0 20 8 0 0 40 8 0 0 40 

Remi Laramandieu 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Daniel Laveta 9 0 0 45 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 45 

Kemble Leasusu 19 0 0 95 4 0 0 20 114 2 0 574 

Daniel Loader 4 3 6 44 0 0 0 0 9 30 13 144 

Sam Lolo 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25 

Matt Mackay 7 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 170 

Bryson Madigan 2 4 0 18 0 0 0 0 2 4 0 18 

Makoni Mafi 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Neville Magee 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Finau Makamaka 13 0 0 65 4 0 0 20 23 0 0 115 

Scott Malone 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Todd Martin 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 60 

Imran  Masood 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 50 

Anaru Mathews 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 

Alastair McFarland 8 0 0 40 4 0 0 20 14 0 0 70 

Tim McGann 3 0 0 15 3 0 0 15 5 0 0 25 

Art McGee 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Sam McGregor 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Lachan McKay 0 3 0 6 0 0 0 0 5 3 0 31 

Nathon McMahon 0 3 0 6 0 0 0 0 18 11 4 124 

Junior Mekuri 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Patrick Mekuri 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 55 

Glen Mekuri 0 6 1 15 0 0 0 0 39 45 11 318 

Sam Milgate 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Ben Mowen 1 0 0 5 14 0 0 70 14 0 0 70 

Steven Noriega 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

Charlie O' Connor 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Darren O'Shea 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Dave Parsons 2 0 0 10 3 0 0 15 12 0 0 60 
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  2011 Career  Career 

Player 
Season Totals First Grade Points Total points 

  T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts 

Luke Parsons 6 0 0 30 6 0 0 30 6 0 0 30 

Kea Pereira 7 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35 

David (Huw) Phillips 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Bob Polosak 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Rory Rafferty 0 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 4 

Serevi Ratu 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 45 

Dan Robertson 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 40 

Tom Rose 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Ben Rowe 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Andrew Ryan 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Naibuka Saune 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Anthony Savovski 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 5 2 0 29 

Eoin Scannell 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Clinton Sills 14 0 0 70 17 0 0 85 22 0 0 110 

S'oseso (Joe) Smith 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 

Hugh Sommerville 12 0 0 60 0 0 0 0 31 0 0 155 

Bryce Speechley 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 

Daniel Spencer 2 0 0 10 1 0 0 5 4 0 0 20 

Richard Swain 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 

John Tamanika 3 0 0 15 3 0 0 15 7 0 0 35 

Damien Tanaka 5 3 0 31 0 0 0 0 5 3 0 31 

Adam Tipping 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Tom Tombleson 3 0 0 15 8 0 0 40 13 0 0 65 

Jack Tovey 8 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 60 

Bevu Tuqiri 6 2 2 40 8 6 3 61 13 10 3 94 

Josh Valentine 1 0 0 5 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

Chris Vallis 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 

Henry Vanderglas 2 0 0 10 6 0 0 30 8 0 0 40 

Lai Vatadroka 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 7 0 0 35 

David Viser 2 0 0 10 6 0 0 30 17 0 0 85 

Andrew Waite 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 22 19 0 148 

Liam Walker 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Michael Walker-Fitton 4 1 0 22 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44 

Henry Weatherall 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 

Tom Weber 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 45 

James White 9 7 0 59 0 0 0 0 9 7 0 59 

Andrew  Wing Kee 15 0 0 75 0 0 0 0 112 3 0 566 

Peter Wright 3 0 0 15 5 0 0 25 60 1 0 302 

Timothy Wright 4 0 0 20 32 0 0 160 49 0 0 245 

Nicholas Wright 3 1 1 20 0 0 0 0 3 1 1 20 

Penalty Tries   4 0 0 20 2 0 0 10 4 0 0 20 

Tally   517 323 90 3501 101 70 34 747 517 323 90 3501 
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2011 Points Scored by Individual Colt Players 

Players Name 
First Colts Second Colts Third Colts Total 

T G P/F Ttl T G P/F Ttl T G P/F Ttl T G P/F Ttl 

Aidan Anderson 6 0 0 30                 6 0 0 30 

Kafe Astley 3 0 0 15 2 0 0 10         5 0 0 25 

Mark Bannon 5 0 0 25                 5 0 0 25 

Rob Bartlett 5 0 0 25                 5 0 0 25 

Zane Bashford         6 0 0 30         6 0 0 30 

Cameron Beach 5 11 9 74 6 5 0 40         11 16 9 114 

Roger Betham         1 0 0 5 2 0 0 10 3 0 0 15 

Chester Blaxell                 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

Beau Brummel 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5         2 0 0 10 

Patrick Brummel         3 0 0 15 1 0 0 5 4 0 0 20 

Hagan Butler                 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

Michael Celona         1 0 0 5         1 0 0 5 

Tom Connor 8 0 0 40                 8 0 0 40 

James Dan         1 0 0 5 3 0 0 15 4 0 0 20 

Jordan Fafita         1 0 0 5 2 0 0 10 3 0 0 15 

Felix Ferrandis                 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

Daniel Fleming 6 0 1 33                 6 0 1 33 

Brendon Frost         6 1 0 32         6 1 0 32 

Simon Galluzzo                 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

Braydon Gibney                 7 15 3 74 7 15 3 74 

Alex Golledge         2 14 7 59 2 5 0 20 4 19 7 79 

Leo Gordon                 4 0 0 20 4 0 0 20 

Jesse Harris 6 0 0 30                 6 0 0 30 

Terrence Hepetema 6 0 2 36                 6 0 2 36 

Fawzi Hijazi                 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

Zeb Holmes-Baer 3 0 0 15                 3 0 0 15 

Alex Iosefa                 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

Troy Jeffs         1 5 1 18 3 13 3 50 4 18 4 68 

Jake Kefford         3 0 0 15         3 0 0 15 

Albert Khouri                 0 9 1 21 0 9 1 21 

Max Kite                 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

Pat Koutsoukis                 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

Seb MacGougan 3 0 0 15 1 0 0 5         4 0 0 20 

Stuart MacKenzie                 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

Anaru Mathews 1 0 0 5                 1 0 0 5 

Matt Meoli 6 0 0 30                 6 0 0 30 

Michael Messina         1 0 0 5 0 1 0 2 1 1 0 7 
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Players Name 
First Colts Second Colts Third Colts Total 

T G P/F Ttl T G P/F Ttl T G P/F Ttl T G P/F Ttl 

Alex Mides 0 2 1 7 3 5 2 31         3 7 3 38 

Chris Miller 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5         2 0 0 10 

Will Munro 2 0 0 10                 2 0 0 10 

Dean Murdock                 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

Jack Musgrave         1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 2 0 0 10 

Evan Nicholas         2 0 0 10         2 0 0 10 

Jackson Raymond         2 0 0 10 8 0 0 40 10 0 0 50 

Tom Redden 7 13 10 91 0 3 0 6 1 0 0 5 8 16 10 102 

Clayton Riley         1 0 0 5 4 0 0 20 5 0 0 25 

Jesse Roche 2 0 0 10                 2 0 0 10 

Hassan Saad         1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 2 0 0 10 

Ben Selby 3 0 0 15                 3 0 0 15 

Phil South                 3 0 0 15 3 0 0 15 

Sam Taylor                 8 0 0 40 8 0 0 40 

Cameron Terry         7 1 0 37 1 0 0 5 8 1 0 42 

Ethan Turnbull         1 0 0 5         1 0 0 5 

Evan Von Zurmuelen                 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 

Charlie Wakim 8 22 7 105 2 2 0 14         10 24 7 119 

Liam Walker 2 0 0 10                 2 0 0 10 

John Weatherall                 5 0 0 25 5 0 0 25 

Elliot White         1 0 0 5         1 0 0 5 

Tom Windeatt 1 0 0 5 9 0 0 45         10 0 0 50 

Earl Yandall                 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 

Walkover Points   8 8   56 8 8   56 12 12   84 28 28 0 196 

Penalty Tries    3     15                 3     15 
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2011 Grade games Played 

Player 1ST 2ND 3RD 4Th 5Th 
2011 Career Career 

Total First Total 

Cruze Ah-Nau 6 3 0 0 0 9 8 11 

Ben Allard 0 6 6 1 1 14 0 14 

Robert Allport 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 4 

Jioje Aropio 0 0 0 1 12 13 0 64 

Jai Ayoub 10 13 0 0 0 23 10 23 

James Ball 0 0 3 23 0 26 0 26 

Mark Bannon 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 

Ken Barker 0 0 0 0 5 5 0 5 

Brendan Barnes 2 12 12 1 0 27 2 27 

Chris Barron 0 12 15 0 0 27 0 134 

Sam Bartlett 6 9 1 4 0 20 9 60 

Zane Bashford 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 

Phoenix Battye 5 1 0 0 0 6 5 6 

Jack Baxter 0 0 0 0 8 8 0 28 

Trent Beilkin 0 0 1 12 0 13 0 13 

Tom Bennett 0 3 12 12 1 28 0 37 

Stephen Bennie 1 14 10 1 0 26 8 78 

Andrew Bloxsom 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 27 

Dominic Bower 3 13 1 2 0 19 3 19 

Charlie Brown 0 1 2 0 0 3 0 3 

Jordan Brown 0 0 6 20 0 26 0 26 

Toby Browne 21 0 0 0 0 21 58 91 

Reme Carmanie 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Steve Casamento 0 2 10 9 1 22 0 135 

Admir Cejvanovic 0 0 0 0 6 6 0 6 

James Cewell 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Tom Connor 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 

Sean Conroy 0 0 0 2 6 8 0 8 

Mathew Curtis 0 0 5 11 1 17 0 49 

Timothy Davidson 0 1 10 0 0 11 0 20 

Nathan Davies 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 81 

Brendan Davis 0 0 0 0 6 6 0 25 

Scott Dehaan 0 0 0 1 7 8 0 8 

Steve Donaghue 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 2 

Adrian Duchini 2 20 0 0 0 22 2 68 

John Ellis 0 0 0 7 0 7 0 9 

Brady Engert 3 10 14 3 0 30 13 89 

Dexter Everingham 0 0 0 0 6 6 0 6 

Francis Fainifo 5 0 0 0 0 5 24 42 

Dave Farrugia 0 0 0 12 10 22 0 42 

Drew Ferguson 0 1 3 12 13 29 0 29 
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Player 1ST 2ND 3RD 4Th 5Th 
2011 Career Career 

Total First Total 

George Fifita 7 13 2 0 0 22 7 22 

Marcos Flegmann 0 0 0 2 8 10 0 10 

Shaun Foley 15 0 0 0 0 15 33 39 

John Fonokalafi 8 13 0 0 0 21 20 44 

Ethan Ford 21 7 0 0 0 28 21 28 

Adam Freier 4 0 0 0 0 4 86 111 

Lloyd Galpern 0 7 15 0 0 22 6 175 

John Garrigan 0 0 0 1 6 7 0 7 

David Gee 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 103 

Michael Gibson 1 14 12 0 0 27 1 47 

Mathew Giteau 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 

Antonio Halangahu 19 1 0 0 0 20 129 210 

Paul Hanniffy 2 3 1 0 0 6 25 97 

Jason Harrington 0 0 0 8 0 8 0 8 

Isaac Harris 0 0 0 5 1 6 0 9 

Patrick Hodgetts 0 7 5 5 0 17 9 66 

James Horne 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Kane Hurst 0 0 0 3 9 12 0 12 

Georffrey Ingram 21 1 0 0 0 22 21 22 

Andrew James 0 1 4 11 0 16 48 144 

Tom Jenkins 0 0 2 17 1 20 0 86 

Ben Jones 0 12 1 3 0 16 0 16 

Beau Jones 0 0 0 0 7 7 0 7 

Tom Joseph 13 11 0 0 0 24 19 51 

Alan Kaihau 0 0 1 13 9 23 0 30 

Peter Kaissis 0 0 0 1 11 12 0 19 

Michael Kaissis 0 0 0 5 12 17 0 17 

Scott Kennedy 0 0 1 4 0 5 0 25 

Sione Kepu  0 3 6 0 0 9 5 41 

Cameron Kesby 1 8 11 13 0 33 1 33 

Martin Kiernan 0 0 1 8 12 21 3 224 

Seilala Lam 10 0 0 0 0 10 37 41 

Remi Larmandieu 0 0 0 0 9 9 0 9 

Daniel Laveta 0 0 5 8 5 18 0 18 

Christian Lealiifano 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 

Iosua (Kemble) Leasusu 0 0 17 10 0 27 15 212 

Daniel Loader 0 8 0 1 0 9 0 30 

Sam Lolo 0 3 7 1 2 13 0 61 

Wes Lolo 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

George Lolo 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Tony Luxford 0 1 0 1 0 2 36 72 



Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc. 2011 Annual Report 

96 

 

Player 1ST 2ND 3RD 4Th 5Th 
2011 Career Career 

Total First Total 

Matt Mackay 1 15 7 1 0 24 4 50 

Bryson Madigan 0 0 0 5 4 9 0 9 

Makoni Mafi 0 6 0 0 0 6 0 6 

Neville Magee 7 6 7 5 0 25 7 25 

Finau Makamaka 10 8 9 0 0 27 10 57 

Scott Malone 0 0 0 5 10 15 0 17 

Josh Malouf 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 37 

Todd Martin 0 0 1 17 8 26 0 81 

Nick Martin 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 

Imran  Masood 0 0 5 9 1 15 0 30 

Anaru Mathews 2 16 1 0 0 19 2 19 

Timothy Maxwell 22 0 0 0 0 22 151 256 

Alastair McFarland 18 6 0 0 0 24 20 47 

Tim McGann 21 0 0 0 0 21 33 37 

Art McGee 0 0 0 3 0 3 0 15 

Sam McGregor 0 0 0 0 11 11 0 11 

Lachan McKay 0 0 16 0 0 16 1 116 

Nathon McMahon 0 0 0 6 0 6 3 121 

Glen Mekuri 0 0 0 3 1 4 7 167 

Patrick Mekuri 1 8 0 2 0 11 35 100 

Junior Mekuri 0 0 0 1 3 4 0 68 

Sam Milgate 0 0 3 24 0 27 0 39 

Max Mison 0 0 0 0 9 9 0 9 

Drew Mitchell   1 0 0 0 0 1 8 8 

Zane Mitchell   0 0 0 1 0 1 0 12 

Ben Mowen 3 0 0 0 0 3 41 44 

James Neill 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 2 

Matt Nethery 0 5 0 0 0 5 51 93 

Steven Noriega 16 8 0 0 0 24 16 24 

Charlie O'Connor 0 0 2 2 0 4 0 4 

Darren O'Shea 0 0 21 0 0 21 13 206 

Tait O'Sullivan 0 0 0 6 0 6 0 15 

Atiele Pakalani 3 0 0 0 0 3 3 3 

Dave Parsons 13 4 0 0 0 17 33 73 

Luke  Parsons 12 5 0 0 0 17 12 17 

Craig Partridge 0 0 0 2 8 10 0 10 

Kea Pereira 0 0 0 0 9 9 0 9 

Patrick Phibbs 2 0 0 0 0 2 113 130 
David 
(Hugh) Phillips 0 0 0 1 5 6 0 6 

Rob Polasak 0 0 0 2 12 14 0 16 

Rory Rafferty 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 4 

Serevi Ratu 1 8 4 2 0 15 6 43 



Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc. 2011 Annual Report 

97 

 

Player 1ST 2ND 3RD 4Th 5Th 
2011 Career Career 

Total First Total 

Shaun Richardson 0 4 5 6 1 16 0 17 

Dan Robertson 0 0 3 9 0 12 0 20 

Thomas Rose 0 0 1 12 3 16 0 16 

Ben Rowe 1 6 11 0 0 18 11 90 

Sam Rutherford 0 1 1 9 0 11 0 60 

Andrew  Ryan 0 0 1 8 1 10 0 10 

Sam Saad 0 0 1 1 0 2 0 2 

William Sarwan 0 0 0 0 3 3 0 3 

Naibuka Saune 0 1 2 14 3 20 0 20 

Anthony Savovski 2 5 6 0 0 13 9 93 

Mitchell Say 0 0 0 0 3 3 0 3 

Oein Scannell 0 0 0 0 8 8 0 8 

Jerrod See 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Ratu Serevi 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 

Clinton Sills 14 0 0 0 0 14 20 23 

S'oseso Smith 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 8 

Hugh Sommerville 0 7 6 0 0 13 0 59 

Bryce Speechley 1 14 10 0 0 25 1 25 

Daniel Spencer 9 12 1 0 0 22 95 158 

Richard Swain 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 

Hili Tafokitau 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 6 

John Tamanika 6 3 0 0 0 9 14 42 

Damien Tanaka 0 0 1 5 5 11 0 11 

Justin Terry 11 4 0 0 0 15 14 126 

Adam Tipping 0 0 0 0 10 10 0 14 

Maraki Toa 17 8 0 0 0 25 19 94 

Tom Tombleson 3 5 0 0 0 8 17 28 

Jack Tovey 6 22 3 0 0 31 7 45 

Bevu Tuqiri 12 3 1 0 0 16 28 36 

Josh Valentine 10 0 0 0 0 10 45 47 

Chris Vallis 0 0 1 2 5 8 0 8 

Henry Vanderglas 5 0 0 0 0 5 16 18 

Lai Vatadroka 6 7 3 0 0 16 7 36 

David Vizer 2 9 6 0 0 17 41 97 

Andrew  Waite 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 48 

Liam Walker 2 7 6 1 0 16 2 16 

Michael Walker-Fitton 0 6 8 2 0 16 0 28 

Henry (Tom) Weatherall 2 3 4 0 0 9 2 9 

Tom Weber 0 1 3 9 0 13 0 33 

James White 0 5 8 13 0 26 0 26 

George Williams 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 
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Player 1ST 2ND 3RD 4Th 5Th 
2011 Career Career 

Total First Total 

Andrew  Wing Kee 0 2 8 7 0 17 0 112 

Peter Wright 0 0 13 3 0 16 2 181 

Timothy Wright 18 0 0 0 0 18 87 116 

Nicholas Wright 0 0 2 1 0 3 0 3 
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2011 Colts games Played 

Player First Second Third Total 

Aiden Anderson 18 3 0 21 

Kingston Anderson 0 0 1 1 

Kade Astley 10 3 0 13 

Mark Bannon 22 0 0 22 

Rob Bartlett 12 0 0 12 

Zane Bashford 0 8 3 11 

Cameron Beach 18 8 0 26 

Roger Betham 2 8 5 15 

Chester Blaxell 0 1 2 3 

Luke Brbot 0 3 11 14 

Beau Brummell 15 13 0 28 

Pat Brummell 1 11 6 18 

Hagan Butler 1 11 14 26 

Michael Celona 2 12 9 23 

Justin Chadwick 0 0 9 9 

Paris Cokinos 0 1 0 1 

Tom Connor 19 0 0 19 

Tristan Conroy 0 4 3 7 

James Dan 4 9 3 16 

Jake Down 0 2 1 3 

Iuka Dubuc 0 0 3 3 

Daniel Duffy 0 1 1 2 

Dom Edgtton 19 6 0 25 

Felix Ferrandis 0 0 5 5 

Jordan Fifita 0 3 3 6 

Daniel Fleming 22 0 0 22 

Brenton Frost 7 14 0 21 

Simon Galluzzo 0 2 18 20 

Brayden Gibney 0 6 17 23 

Alex Golledge 0 10 1 11 

Jarrod Gollings 0 0 3 3 

Leo Gordon 0 4 19 23 

Jesse  Harris 15 0 0 15 

Terrence Hepetema 21 0 0 21 

Fawzi Hijazi 0 0 11 11 

Zeb Holmes-Baer 21 0 0 21 

Alex Iosefa 1 6 17 24 

Troy Jeffs 0 11 12 23 

Jono Jones 5 2 0 7 

Doug Joseph 0 0 7 7 
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Player First Second Third Total 

MacKenzie Jowett 0 1 1 2 

Jake Kefford 9 15 0 24 

Albert Khouri 0 0 8 8 

Max Kite 0 3 18 21 

Patrick Koutsoukis 0 1 12 13 

Seb MacGougan 16 4 1 21 

Stuart MacKenzie 0 7 15 22 

Darcy Mathews 0 0 3 3 

Anaru Mathews 5 0 0 5 

Matt Meoli 15 0 0 15 

Matt Merritt 0 0 1 1 

Michael Messina 0 10 5 15 

Alex Mides 3 17 0 20 

Chris Miller 13 6 0 19 

Liam Moore 0 0 12 12 

Will Munro 21 0 0 21 

Dean Murdock 0 1 12 13 

Tim Murray 17 11 0 28 

Jack Musgrove 2 13 8 23 

Evan Nicholas 0 10 6 16 

Jarrod O'Hara 8 17 5 30 

Harry Ramage 0 2 10 12 

Jackson Raymond 0 8 14 22 

Lewis Raymond 0 0 7 7 

Tom Redden 12 3 1 16 

Clayton Riley 0 4 9 13 

Jesse  Roche 10 2 1 13 

Aaron Rutter 0 0 11 11 

Hasson Saad 0 11 6 17 

Ben Selby 17 4 0 21 

Phillip South 0 3 19 22 

Tom Sterling 0 0 5 5 

Joma Stevens 0 0 3 3 

Nathan Steyn 0 2 1 3 

Sam Taylor 0 1 19 20 

Cameron Terry 2 14 5 21 

Ethan Turnbull 7 12 1 20 

Evan Von Zurmuehlen 0 0 8 8 

Charlie Wakim 8 2 0 10 

Liam Walker 9 0 0 9 

John Weatherall 0 6 14 20 

Elliot White 3 14 0 17 

Tom Windeatt 2 16 3 21 

Earl Yandall 0 0 10 10 


